
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; Councillor Finlayson; Vice Convener; and Councillors 

Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Grant, Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence, MacGregor, 
Jean Morrison MBE, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart, Thomson and Townson. 
  

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN, 11 June 2014  
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
are requested to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on THURSDAY, 19 JUNE 
2014 at 10.00am. 
 
 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

 Members please note that all letters of representation, including those not in 
the report pack, are available to view in the Members' library 

 

 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 1.1  Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee 
of 28 May 2014 - for approval  (Pages 1 - 16) 
 

 PLANNING APPLICATIONS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF WRITTEN 
REPORTS 

 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL 

 

 2.1  Hopetoun Grange, Land to North of - Partial amendment to Planning 
Application 130029 to allow for an additional 20 units and change of house 
types  (Pages 17 - 66) 

  Reference No – 140153 
Planning application documents can be viewed here –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140153 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 2.2  Aberdeen Airport Sports and Social Club, Farburn Terrace, Dyce - Erection 
of Helicopter Hangar  (Pages 67 - 82) 

  Reference No – 140209 
Planning application documents can be viewed here –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140209  
 

 2.3  Riverside East Building, Garthdee Road, Garthdee Campus - Variation of 
Condition 33 (CPZ)  (Pages 83 - 110) 

  Reference No – 140573 
Planning application documents can be viewed here –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140573  
 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF REFUSAL 

 

 2.4  Former Royal Cornhill Hospital, Berryden Road - Demolition of former 
hospital buildings and proposed residential development of 300 units, 
comprising 135 new build houses, 141 new build flats and conversion of 
former hospital building to form 24 flats, with associated car parking, open 
space and infrastructure  (Pages 111 - 154) 

  Reference No – 130381 
Planning application documents can be viewed here –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=130381  
 

 2.5  Friendville, Great Western Road - Change of use to events/function facility 
with associated guest accommodation  (Pages 155 - 176) 

  Reference No – 140359 
Planning application documents can be viewed here –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140359 
 
 

 2.6  21 Union Street - Change of use from Class 1 (Retail) to hot food takeaway 
(sui generis) and installation of flue  (Pages 177 - 202) 

  Reference No – 140273 
Planning application documents can be viewed here –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140273  
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address:  www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Steph 
Dunsmuir on sdunsmuir@aberdeencity.gov.uk or tel 522503   
 



 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
ABERDEEN, 28 May 2014.  Minute of Meeting of the PLANNING 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor Milne, 
Convener; Councillor Finlayson, Vice Convener; and Councillors Boulton (to 
article 4), Cormie, Donnelly (as substitute for Councillor Boulton from article 5), 
Grant (from article 5 onwards), Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence, MacGregor, 
Jean Morrison MBE, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart, Sandy Stuart (as substitute for 
Councillor Corall), Thomson, Townson and Young (as substitute for Councillor 
Grant to article 4). 

 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:- 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=348&MI
d=2882&Ver=4 
 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of 
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this 
document will not be retrospectively altered. 
 
 

MINUTE OF MEETING OF PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE OF 24 APRIL 2014 
 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 24 April 2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE (VISITS) OF 2 MAY 2014 
 
2. The Committee had before it the minute of the meeting of the Planning 
Development Management Committee (Visits) of 2 May 2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
GRANDHOME ESTATE, DANESTONE - 131535 
 
3. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee express a willingness to approve the application in respect of 
planning permission in principle for a mixed-use development comprising up to 4,700 
homes, town and neighbourhood centres, including commercial, retail, leisure and hotel 
uses, employment land, community facilities, energy centre, open space and 
landscaping, and supporting infrastructure including access on the Grandhome Estate, 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



2 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

Danestone, but to withhold the issue of the consent document until the applicant had 
entered into a section 75 legal agreement with the Council to secure (1) the provision of 
25% affordable housing in accordance with the Development Framework, to include a 
range of delivery options, including on-site provision and a gypsy traveller halting site; 
(2) developer contributions towards primary education provision (2 three stream 
schools) and a new secondary school plus serviced land for the foregoing; (3) 
developer contributions towards community facilities, library, sports provision, playing 
fields and healthcare; (4) developer contributions towards the Strategic Transport Fund; 
and (5) developer contributions towards mitigation on the local roads network; and 
subject to the following conditions:- 

(1) That this permission shall lapse unless applications for those Matters 
Specified in Conditions (MSC) where development may not commence prior to 
determination of the condition (known as ‘suspensive conditions’) in respect of 
the first phase of development (as defined by the phasing plan required to be 
submitted by condition 4 below, or such other plan as is subsequently agreed) 
are made to the Planning Authority within 4 years of the date of this planning 
permission.  Thereafter:- 

MSC applications (suspensive only) for each subsequent phase shall be 
made within 3 years of the date of the final approval of the MSCs 
(suspensive only) in the preceding phase of development, as identified in 
the phasing plan to be submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Authority in accordance with Condition 4 of this permission, whichever is 
the later, or, the latest of the following:- 

(i)     The expiration of 6 months from the date on which an earlier 

application for the requisite MSC was refused 

(ii)     The expiration of 6 months from the date on which an appeal 

against such refusal was dismissed; 
In order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 
2006; 

(2) That the development hereby granted permission shall be begun before 
the expiration of two years from the final approval of the matters specified in 
conditions for the respective phase or, in the case of approval on different dates, 
the final approval of the last such matters to be approved for the respective 

phase - in order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Scotland) Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006; (3) 
No development in connection with each respective phase of the planning 
permission hereby approved shall take place until full details of the siting, design, 
external appearance and landscaping within the relevant phase of the 
development and the means of access serving the relevant phase of 
development  have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority. The development shall then be implemented in complete accordance 
with the approved details, or those subsequently approved.  Depending on the 
phase, and unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority, the 
MSC applications shall include (1) a detailed levels survey of the site and cross 
sections showing  proposed finished ground and floor levels relative to existing 

Page 2



3 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

ground  levels and a fixed datum point within the relevant phase of  
development; (2) a detailed Drainage Plan for the relevant phase of 
development, including full details of the proposed means of disposal of surface 
water from the relevant phase of development, including how surface water run-
off shall be addressed during construction, as well as incorporating the principles 
of pollution prevention and mitigation measures.  The final location of SUDs, 
including ponds, should be appropriately positioned in accordance with an 
agreed flood risk assessment; (3) full details of the connection to the existing 
Scottish Water foul water drainage network for the relevant phase of 
development; (4) details of all cut and fill operations in the relevant phase of 
the development; (5) the details of all roads, footpaths and cycleways throughout 
the  relevant phase of the development, including the progressive upgrading of 
Whitestripes Road where the development fronts and accesses that road; (6) 
details of any screen walls/fencing to be provided within the relevant  phase of 
the development; (7) details of all landscaping, planting and screening 
associated with the  relevant phase of the development; (8) full details of the 
layout, siting, design and finish of all residential  properties, including the gypsy 
traveller site, throughout the relevant phase of development; (9) full details of the 
layout, siting, design and finish of all non-residential properties throughout the 
relevant phase of development.  This shall include but is not limited to; 
community facilities, health centre, schools, commercial premises, energy 
centres, pumping stations, and water treatment works; (10) full details of all 
waste/recycling collection points, for residential and non-residential properties; in 
order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 
Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006; 
(3) The submission of the first application for the approval of MSC, plans 
shall incorporate a proposed phasing plan for the development as a whole, 
including identifying the phase that would include the gypsy traveller site. The 
development shall not be implemented otherwise than in full accordance with 
any scheme thereby approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Planning Authority – to provide information relating to the schedule of 
development for the planning authority and in relation to others conditions; 
(4) The landscaping details to be submitted pursuant to Condition 3 above 
shall include (1) existing and proposed finished ground levels relative to a fixed 
datum  point; (2) existing landscape features and vegetation to be retained; (3) 
existing and proposed services including cables, pipelines and  substations; (4) 
the location of new trees, shrubs, hedges, grassed areas and water  features; (5) 
a schedule of plants to comprise species, plant sizes and proposed  numbers 
and density; (6) the location, design and materials of all hard landscaping works  
including walls, fences, gates, street furniture and play equipment; (7) an 
indication of existing trees, shrubs and hedges to be removed; (8) a Biodiversity 
Action Plan; (9) a Management Plan detailing appropriate management 
measures for  all watercourse buffer strips; (10) a programme for the completion 
and subsequent maintenance of the  proposed landscaping.  All soft and hard 
landscaping proposals shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scheme and shall be completed during the planting season immediately 
following the commencement of each respective phase of the development or 

Page 3



4 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

such other date as may be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any 
planting which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of each phase of 
the development, in the opinion of the Planning Authority is dying, being severely 
damaged or becoming seriously diseased, shall be replaced by plants of similar 
size and species to those originally required to be planted – in the interests of 
protecting trees and ensuring a satisfactory quality of environment; 
(5) The details to be submitted pursuant to Condition 3 for each respective 
phase of the development shall show the proposed means of disposal of foul 
and surface water from the relevant phase of the development within the form of 
a Sustainable Urban Drainage System and include a development impact 
assessment and detailed design and methodology statement. Unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA, the 
development shall connect to the public sewer and the relevant phase of the 
development shall not be occupied unless the agreed drainage system has been 
provided in its entirety and maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the 
consent in accordance with the approved maintenance scheme. The details 
required shall also include details of the future long term maintenance of the 
system covering matters such as (1) an inspection regime relating to matters 
such as outlets/inlets; (2) frequency and method of cleaning of filter trenches, 
removal of silt etc.; (3) grass cutting (and weeding) regime for swales; (4) means 
of access for future maintenance; (5) how to ensure that planting will not be 
undertaken over perforated pipes; (6) details of the contact parties for future 
factoring/maintenance of the scheme to protect the water environment and help 
reduce flooding; 
(6) Prior to the commencement of any phase of development, as identified in 
the approved phasing plan required by condition 4, for each respective phase full 
details of the proposed street design for each block, which shall contain, but not 
be limited to, a parking strategy, road junctions and visibility splays, gradients, 
level details, finishing/surfacing materials and crossing points, shall be provided 
for the further written approval of the Planning Authority in consultation with 
Roads Development. The development shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with such a plan and buildings shall not be occupied unless the 
streets and parking areas for the respective block are complete and available for 
use – in the interests of road safety;  
(7) That no development within the phase that includes the ‘town centre’ 
(including the 2500m2 single unit of retail floorspace indicated in the approved 
Grandhome Development Framework) shall take place unless there has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by, the planning authority a Retail Impact 
Assessment (RIA) for the Town Centre The RIA shall assess the proposed scale 
and mix of town centre uses (Class 1, 2, 3, 7 and 11) and any impact on nearby 
town, district and neighbourhood centres and the city centre, together with an 
assessment of the scale and mix of town centre uses that are required to meet 
the retail and leisure needs of Grandhome residents and adjacent residential 
communities. The Assessment should also demonstrate how town centre uses 
should be phased to ensure the vitality and vibrancy of the Town Centre. The 
precise level of retail  and town centre uses shall be informed by the outcome of 
the RIA to ensure that there is no significant adverse impact on pre-existing 

Page 4



5 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

centres .– in order to ensure that the level of retail floorspace is appropriate to 
the size of settlement; 
(8) Prior to the occupancy of each block, parking spaces, surfaced in hard 
standing materials shall be provided within the site in accordance with the 
agreed parking strategy in accordance with the Council's Car Parking Standards, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority - in the interests of 
road safety; 
(9) That, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the planning authority, no 
more than 50% of the housing in the phase that includes the gypsy travellers 
site, shall be occupied prior to the travellers site being provided in accordance 
with a scheme that has been submitted to and approved in writing by, the 
planning authority – in the interests of ensuring the provision of a gypsy 
travellers site; 
(10) That no development shall commence until such time as a public 
transport strategy, including proposals for the provision of either new or 
extended bus services linking the development with the existing public transport 
network, and details of the phased implementation of the strategy, have been 
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority.  No dwellinghouse shall 
then be occupied until the details submitted have been approved by the Planning 
Authority and shall thereafter be implemented in full in accordance with such a 
scheme – in the interests of encouraging the use of public transport; 
(11) Prior to occupation of any development, and unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Planning Authority, the access junction onto Whitestripes Avenue 
and signalised pedestrian/cycle crossing will have been constructed in 
accordance with the submitted scheme or other such scheme as so agreed with 
the planning authority – in the interests of road safety; 
(12) Prior to commencement of the development, details of the frontage 
treatment along the trunk road boundary shall be submitted for the approval of 
the Planning Authority, after consultation with Transport Scotland, and thereafter 
implemented in complete accordance with such a scheme unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the planning authority – to minimise the risk of pedestrians 
and animals gaining uncontrolled access to the trunk road with the consequential 
risk of accidents; 
(13) No residential units shall be occupied prior to November 2015 (to coincide 
with the opening of the Third Don Crossing) – in the interests of the traffic 
management; 
(14) That no more than 500 residential units and ancillary uses shall be 
occupied prior to the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route being open to traffic, 
and the consequent removal of trunk road status for the A90 Parkway to restrict 
the scale of the development in order to minimise the interference with the safety 
and free flow of traffic on the trunk road; 
(15) For the period whilst it remains a trunk road, there shall be no means of 
direct access to the A90 Parkway for either vehicles or pedestrians – to ensure 
that the movement of traffic and pedestrians is confined to the permitted means 
of access thereby lessening the danger to and interference with the free flow of 
traffic on the trunk road; 

Page 5



6 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

(16) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, no more 
than 501 residential units within the development shall be occupied until (1) a 
new signalised junction on the Parkway has been constructed; and (2) there has 
been implemented, modifications to the Buckie Farm Roundabout approach from 
Whitestripes Avenue.  Both (1) and (2) shall be in complete accordance with a 
scheme to be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority in 
the interests of road safety. 
(17) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, no more 
than 3501 residential units within the development shall be occupied until the 
signalisation of the Laurel Drive junction with the Parkway has been completed. 

 The scheme shall be in complete accordance with a scheme to be submitted to, 

and approved in writing by, the planning authority in the interests of road safety. 
(18) No development in any particular phase of the development hereby 
approved shall take place unless a badger survey for that phase has been 
carried out and submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.  
The survey shall identify the location of all setts within the site and its vicinity and 
shall be undertaken by an experienced badger surveyor. Thereafter no 
development shall take place within the relevant phase of the development 
unless detailed mitigation measures to safeguard all existing badger setts 
located on and in the vicinity of the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority. These details shall ensure access to fields for 
foraging and the retention of an adequate foraging area on completion of the 
development.  For the avoidance of doubt there must be a minimum of 30m 
between any part of the development (including garden ground) and any sett.  
No development shall take place within the relevant phase unless the mitigation 
measures which have been agreed in writing by the Planning Authority are 
carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme – to ensure the protection of 
badgers; 
(19) No development in a particular phase of the development hereby 
approved shall take place unless a bat survey of the phase has been carried out 
by a licensed bat worker and submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, no development shall take place within that 
phase unless detailed mitigation measures to safeguard bats within the phase 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and 
the agreed mitigation measures have been carried out in their entirety – in the 
interests of protecting bats; 
(20) No works shall take place within any phase of development, until the 
developer has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological 
works for that phase in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which 
has been submitted by the applicant, agreed by the Council Archaeology 
Service, and approved by the Planning Authority.  Thereafter the developer shall 
ensure that the programme of archaeological works is fully implemented and that 
all recording and recovery of archaeological resources within the development 
site is undertaken to the satisfaction of the Planning Authority in agreement with 
the Council's Archaeology Service; 

Page 6



7 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

(21) No development in connection with any phase of the development hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed Flood Risk Assessment, adhering to 
Technical Guidance for Flood Risk Stakeholders, for that phase has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority in consultation 
with SEPA. All work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Assessment – in the interests of avoiding flooding; 
(22) Prior to the commencement of works in any respective phase, a scheme 
detailing levels of sustainable drainage (SUDS) surface water treatment shall be 
submitted for the written approval of the planning authority, in consultation with 
SEPA, and all work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme 
prior to occupation of the respective phase. The scheme shall be developed in 
accordance with the technical guidance contained in The SUDS Manual (C697) 
and should incorporate source control to ensure adequate protection of the water 
environment from surface water run-off; 
(23) All open watercourses on site should remain open and not be culverted 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority in consultation with 
SEPA – in the interests of the avoidance of flooding and the environment; 
(24) No development in connection with any phase of the development hereby 
approved shall take place unless a Survey identifying any private water supplies 
in that phase and a timetable for the carrying out of such work that will be 
impacted by the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority in consultation with SEPA. The Survey shall identity 
measures to protect or replace any identified private water supplies. All work 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Survey – in the interests of 
ensuring there is no detriment to those users of private water supplies; 
(25) No works on any phase of the development hereby approved shall 
commence unless a detailed site-specific construction method statement has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.  The 
construction method statement shall include details of the proposed routing of 
construction traffic. Once agreed, all construction works on the site shall comply 
with the approved construction method statement – in the interests of avoiding 
pollution; 
(26) Prior to the commencement of works on each phase, a site waste 
management plan shall be submitted for the written approval of the Planning 
Authority, in consultation with SEPA, and all work shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved plan – in the interests of avoiding pollution; 
(27) Prior to the commencement of development on each phase, a full site 
specific environmental management plan (EMP) must be submitted for the 
written approval of the Planning Authority, in consultation with SEPA and any 
other relevant agency, and all work shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plan. Such a plan shall include a dust management plan, detailing dust 
mitigation measures and controls, responsibilities and any proposed monitoring 
regime. The dust management plan shall be in accordance with good practice 
recommendations within the Institute of Air Quality Management: Guidance on 
the Assessment of the Impact of Construction on Air Quality and the 
Determination of their Significance, December 2011 and guidance on Air Quality 

Page 7



8 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

monitoring in the Vicinity of Demolition and Construction Sites – in the interests 
of protecting the environment; 
(28) Prior to the occupation of any non-residential units, any external plant and 
equipment to be installed shall be submitted and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority, in consultation with Environmental Health. Details are to 
include an assessment of noise impact on the nearest residential property and 
recommendations for mitigation measures. Any measures recommended shall 
be implemented in full prior to the non-residential units being brought into use – 
in the interests of residential amenity; 
(29) That no commercial / employment or residential element of the 
development shall be occupied unless there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority, a comprehensive Travel Plan for 
that part of the development, setting out proposals for reducing dependency on 
the private car. Each Travel Plan shall identify measures to be implemented, the 
system of management, monitoring, review and reporting, as well as the duration 
of the plan – in the interests of reducing travel by private car; 
(30) That no development shall take place within any individual phase unless 
there has been submitted, to and approved in writing by, the planning authority 
an MSC application identifying safe routes to schools within the proposed 
development. The application shall include details of measures, including a 
timetable for implementation, required to help ensure safe travel to school and 
the measures shall be implemented fully in accordance with such a plan – in 
order to promote sustainable and safe travel; 
(31) No development shall take place unless it is carried out in full accordance 
with a scheme to address any significant risks from contamination on the site 
that has been approved in writing by the planning authority.  The scheme shall 
follow the procedures outlined in “Planning Advice Note 33 Development of 
Contaminated Land” and shall be conducted by a suitably qualified person in 
accordance with best practice as detailed in “BS10175 Investigation of 
Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice” and other best practice 
guidance and shall include (1) an investigation to determine the nature and 
extent of contamination; (2) a site-specific risk assessment; (3) a remediation 
plan to address any significant risks and ensure the site is fit for the use 
proposed; (4) verification protocols to demonstrate compliance with the 
remediation plan; 
(32) No building(s) on the development site shall be occupied unless (1) any 
long term monitoring and reporting that may be required by the approved 
scheme of contamination or remediation plan or that otherwise has been 
required in writing by the planning authority is being undertaken; and (2) a report 
specifically relating to the building(s) has been submitted and approved in writing 
by the planning authority that verifies that remedial works to fully address 
contamination issues related to the building(s) have been carried out, unless the 
planning authority has given written consent for a variation. The final building on 
the application site shall not be occupied unless a report has been submitted and 
approved in writing by the planning authority that verifies that the remedial works 
have been carried out in full accordance with the remediation plan, unless the 

Page 8



9 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

planning authority has given written consent for a variation - reason: to ensure 
that the site is suitable for use and fit for human occupation; 
(33) Given the site’s location near to the airport, development shall not 
commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan for the duration of earth works 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority. The 
Bird Hazard Management Plan must outline the Developer’s commitment to 
managing the risk of attracting birds to the site during excavation activities, and 
the measures in place for the safe dispersal of birds. The measures identified 
within the plan shall be implemented in full – in the interests of aircraft safety; 
(34) In the event that during construction, cranage or scaffolding is required, 
then their use must be subject to separate consultation with Aberdeen 
International Airport (AIA). We would like to draw the applicant’s attention to the 
requirement within the British Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of 
cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in 
close proximity to an aerodrome – in the interests of aircraft safety; 
(35) The proposed SUDS pond has the potential to attract feral geese and 
waterfowl, therefore details of the pond’s profile and its attenuation times are 
requested from the applicant. Development within any phase containing SUDS 
ponds shall not take place unless there has been submitted, details of the SUDS 
ponds as above. If the pond is to remain dry for the majority of the year and has 
a rapid drawdown time, it should not be an attractant. However, should this not 
be the case, the scheme must outline the measures in place to avoid 
endangering the safe operation of aircraft through the attraction of birds. The 
proposal shall be implemented in complete accordance with any measures as so 
agreed – in the interest of aircraft safety; 
(36) That no buildings within any respective phase of the development hereby 
approved shall be occupied unless a scheme detailing compliance with the 
Council’s ‘Low and Zero Carbon Buildings’ Supplementary Guidance has been 
submitted to the planning authority via a formal application and subsequently 
approved by that authority, and any recommended measures specified within the 
that scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full 
– to ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions in 
carbon emissions specified in the City Council’s Supplementary Guidance; 
(37) That no part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied 
unless a plan and report illustrating appropriate management proposals for the 
care and maintenance of all trees to be retained and any new areas of planting 
(to include timing of works and inspections) has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Planning Authority. The proposals shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with such plan and report as may be so approved, unless 
the planning authority has given prior written approval for a variation - in order to 
preserve the character and visual amenity of the area; 
(38) That any tree work which appears to become necessary during the 
implementation of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior 
written consent of the Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing 
on the site shall be remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 
"Recommendations for Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first 
occupied - in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area; 

Page 9



10 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

(39) That no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground 
levels or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas 
specified in the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written 
consent of the Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the 
flames could extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to 
ensure adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development; 
(40) That no development shall take place within an individual phase unless a 
plan showing those trees (within the respective phase) to be removed and those 
to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to be retained on the 
site during construction works has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have been approved has 
been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection for the trees on site 
during the construction of the development; 
(41) No development shall take place in any individual phase of the 
development hereby approved, unless there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority and by the radar Operator - NATS 
(En-route) plc, either (1) detailed plans for the proposed buildings in that 
individual phase, demonstrating that there would be no detrimental impact upon 
the operation of the Perwinnes Radar; or (2) details of a scheme to mitigate any 
detrimental impact upon the Perwinnes Radar.  Development shall not take 
place other than in complete accordance with such a scheme as so approved 
unless the planning authority and NATS (En-route) plc have given written 
consent for a variation in the interests of aircraft safety.  For the purpose of this 
condition:- “Operator” means NATS (En-route) plc, incorporated under the 
Companies Act (4129273) whose registered office is 4000 Parkway, Whiteley, 
Fareham, Hant, PO15 7FL or such other organisation licensed from time to time 
under section 5 and 6 of the Transport Act 2000 to provide air traffic services to 
the relevant managed area (within the meaning of section 40 of that Act). 

 

Informative 1 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Planning Authority, during the 
construction of any phase of the development, the normal hours of operation for 
all activity audible at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive premises shall 
be between 07:00 to 19:00 hours Monday to Friday; 07:00 to 12:00 hours on 
Saturday, with no working on Sundays. 

  

Informative 2 

It is advisable that the developer contact the Council’s Waste Aware Team to 
discuss the appropriate waste storage and uplift arrangements for the residential 
developments. 

  

Informative 3 

Developers and applicants are advised that the application site is within the 
safeguarding zone of Perwinnes Radar Installation, operated by NATS (En 
Route) plc (“NERL”). On receipt of an application for matters specified in 

Page 10



11 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

conditions (MSC) related to this grant of planning permission in principle (PPiP), 
the planning authority will consult NERL to determine if proposed buildings and 
structures would have an adverse impact upon the operation of the radar 
installation and if mitigation to any impact is possible. If an unacceptable impact 
and a viable mitigation is identified, the developer will be expected to agree with 
NERL a mitigation package prior to determination of an application. 

 

The planning authority strongly suggests that prior to submission of an 
application, early dialogue with NATS is undertaken to find a solution to any 
impact a development may have on the radar. NATS provide a technical 
consultancy service to developers wishing to enter into pre-application 
discussions and further information can be obtained from the NATS 
Safeguarding Office at NATSSafeguarding@nats.co.uk 

 
The Convener, seconded by Councillor Boulton, moved:- 

That the application be approved in accordance with the recommendation 
contained within the report. 

 
Councillor MacGregor, seconded by Councillor Townson:- 

That the application be refused, on the grounds that the proposed transport 
system could not sustain the size of the development. 

 
On a division, there voted:- for the motion (12) – the Convener; the Vice Convener; and 
Councillors Boulton, Cormie, Jaffrey, Lawrence, Jean Morrison MBE, Samarai, Sandy 
Stuart, Thomson, Townson and Young; for the amendment (3) – Councillors Greig, 
MacGregor and Jennifer Stewart. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request that officers discuss with the developer the possibility of the 

gypsy/traveller site being brought forward to an earlier phase of the 
development; and 

(ii) to adopt the motion. 
 
 
FORMER NIGG CARAVAN PARK, ALTENS FARM ROAD - 140434 
 
4. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended – 
 
That the Committee express a willingness to approve the application in respect of the 
construction of a 595 space partially decked car park with associated landscaping and 
lighting columns, to include the demolition of the existing dwelling, but to withhold the 
issue of the consent document until the applicant (Argon) had entered into a legal 
agreement with the Council to secure (i) the inclusion of 36 parking spaces within the 
parking allocation for the future City Park 2 development, or their removal after five 
years of occupation of City Park 1, (ii) financial contributions towards capacity 

Page 11



12 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

improvements on Wellington Road and (iii) the proposed tenant of the building 
approved under application P131742 (Wood Group PSN) enter into a legal agreement 
to implement the actions with the Green Travel Plan and submit regular monitoring 
reports to the Council, subject to the following conditions:- 

(1)  that no development (other than site preparation and ground works) shall 
take place unless the development subject of planning application P131742 has 
commenced, thereafter the car park shall be used for no purpose other than to 
accommodate vehicles of staff and visitors associated with the office 
development which is subject of planning application P131742 - in order to 
provide a suitable level of vehicle parking for the proposed office building, avoid 
an overprovision of parking unrestricted parking in the area and ensure the free 
flow of traffic in surrounding streets; (2)  that no development shall take place 
unless a scheme of all drainage works (including calculations as necessary) 
designed to meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority, thereafter 
no part of the office building shall be occupied unless the drainage has been 
installed in complete accordance with the said scheme, unless a written variation 
has been granted by the planning authority – in order to safeguard water 
qualities in adjacent watercourses and to ensure that the development can be 
adequately drained; (3)  that an archaeological watching brief shall be carried out 
during the removal or undertaking of any alterations to the broad consumption 
dyke located on the east side of the site and identified as 'Dyke F1' in the 
archaeological report and data structure report produced by Cameron 
Archaeology, dated 9th December 2013 and entitled 'Nigg Caravan Park, Altens 
Farm Road, Aberdeen, AB12 3FY' - in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site; (4)  that no 
development (other than site preparation and ground works) shall take place 
unless a further detailed scheme for the landscaping for the site (which shall 
include (i) indications of all existing trees and landscaped areas on the land, and 
details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the 
course of development, (ii) tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, 
densities, locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting and (iii) the 
proposed materials to be used to surface areas of hard landscaping) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority - in order to 
satisfactorily integrate the development into its surroundings and maintain the 
visual amenity of the area; (5)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in 
the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting 
season following the completion of the development and any trees or plants 
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of a size and species similar to those originally 
required to be planted, or in accordance with such other scheme as may be 
submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority - 
in the interests of the amenity of the area; and (6) that no development shall take 
place within the application site until the applicant has secured the 
implementation of a programme of archaeological work for the areas not already 
covered by Cameron Archaeologies Evaluation Reports dated 2013 and 2014, 

Page 12



13 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

which shall include post-excavation and publication work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the planning authority – in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site. 

 
The Committee discussed parking pressures faced by larger developments in the city, 
and asked that a letter be sent to the relevant Scottish Minister to request that 
dispensation be made for Aberdeen in relation to maximum parking standards.  Dr 
Bochel advised that as such an approach would be directly contrary to the requirements 
of Scottish Planning Policy and transport policies in both the adopted Structure Plan 
and adopted Local Plan which aim to promote sustainable transportation, modal shift 
and reduce the reliance on private car as well as being contrary to the adopted Local 
Transport Strategy previously approved by the Council. With this in mind it would be 
necessary to refer the matter to the Enterprise, Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee for consideration.  The Committee further noted the difficulties caused by 
not being able to legally enforce Green Travel Plan targets, and requested that this also 
be raised in the letter to the Scottish Government. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to recommend to the Enterprise, Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 

Committee that a letter be sent to the relevant Scottish Minister to (a) request 
that a dispensation be made for Aberdeen in relation to maximum parking 
standards, and (b) ask for consideration of how targets set within Green Travel 
Plans could be legally enforced;  and 

(ii) to approve the recommendation contained with the report, with an additional 
condition that Altens Farm Road should not be used as an exit or entrance point 
for the site. 

 
 
HILLHEAD OF CLINTERTY, TYREBAGGER ROAD, KIRKTON OF SKENE - 130918 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve the application in respect of a proposed explosives 
storage facility comprising 6 buildings access road and bunds at Hillhead of Clinterty, 
Tyrebagger Road, subject to the following conditions:- 

(1) that no development shall take place within the application site until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological 
work which shall include post-excavation and publication work in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant 
and approved by the planning authority - in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site; (2)  that no 
development shall take place unless a scheme of all drainage works designed to 
meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and thereafter no 
part of the development shall be occupied unless the drainage has been 

Page 13



14 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

installed in complete accordance with the said scheme - in order to safeguard 
water quality and to ensure that the development can be adequately drained; (3) 
that no development shall take place unless a scheme of all external lighting 
(including type, lux  level and position of all lights) has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority. Thereafter any lighting installed 
shall be in accordance wit the approved scheme; (4)  that all planting, seeding 
and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping (drawing 130918-
01 and planting list 130918- 02) shall be carried out in the first planting season 
following the completion of the development and any trees or plants which within 
a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or 
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be 
planted, or in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and 
approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of 
integrating the development into the area; (5) that notwithstanding the provisions 
of Part 8 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 
1992 (as amended) the land and buildings which are subject of this planning 
permission shall be used for no purpose other than (i) the storage of explosives 
(including fuses, charges, detonators etc.), (ii) the storage of ancillary equipment 
used for the day to day operation of the facility; and (iii) the assembly of 
perforating guns - in order to ensure that the site is not used for any purpose 
which could not justify a green belt location; (6)  that should the approved use as 
an explosives store cease and facilities become redundant, all buildings and 
other structures shall be removed from the site and the land restored to its 
former condition (allowing retention of landscaping) to the satisfaction of the 
planning authority within 6 months - in order to maintain the amenity and 
landscape quality of the green belt. 

 
The Committee heard that the lighting towers were no longer part of the application. 
 
Councillors Lawrence and Samarai requested that assurances be sought from the 
Health and Safety Executive in relation to the impact and risks associated with the 
application, prior to granting approval.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to express a willingness for officers to approve the application, subject to receiving the 
appropriate assurances from the Health and Safety Executive. 
 
 
148 SPITAL, ABERDEEN - 140531 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve the application in respect of the change of use from Class 
4 (Business) to Class 1 (Shops) for the property at 148 Spital. 
 

Page 14



15 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

Councillor Jean Morrison, MBE, requested that a condition in relation to waste disposal 
provision be attached to the Committee approval. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the application, with the condition that the use hereby granted planning 
permission should not take place unless provision was made for waste disposal and, if 
appropriate, recycling facilities in accordance with a scheme which has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the planning authority - in order to preserve the amenity of 
the neighbourhood and in the interests of public health. 
 
 
4 WESTFIELD TERRACE, ABERDEEN - 131777 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee refuse the application in respect of the erection of a two storey 
dwellinghouse within garden ground, and alterations to the boundary wall at 4 Westfield 
Terrace, Aberdeen, on the following grounds:- 

(1) That the site lies within garden ground associated with an existing 
dwellinghouse.  As the proposal is considered to have an unacceptable impact 
on the character of the surrounding area which comprises large dwellings set 
within generous curtilages, the proposed development does not comply with 
Policy H1 Residential Areas of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, not the 
associated Supplementary Guidance on Subdivision and Redevelopment of 
Residential Curtilages.  If permitted, the application would create a precedent for 
more, similar developments to the further detriment of the character of the 
surrounding area; 
(2) That the proposal, by nature of its form and siting, relationship to other 
buildings, and the loss of trees, would not protect and enhance the character and 
appearance of the Rosemount/Westburn Conservation area, and would 
therefore be contrary to Policy D5 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan; and 
(3) That the proposal would result in the loss of a number of existing trees 
which add to the character and amenity of the area, therefore being contrary to 
policy NE5 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 

 
Councillor Thomson moved as a procedural motion, seconded by Councillor Jennifer 
Stewart, that a site visit be undertaken. 
 
On a division, there voted:- for the procedural motion (8) – the Vice Convener; and 
Councillors Donnelly, Greig, Jaffrey, MacGregor, Jennifer Stewart, Thomson and 
Townson; against the procedural motion (7) – the Convener; and Councillors Cormie, 
Grant, Lawrence, Jean Morrison MBE, Samarai and Sandy Stuart. 
 
The Committee then heard Councillor Jennifer Stewart, as local member, speak in 
support of the application as she would not be in attendance at the site visit.  Councillor 
Stewart suggested that the Committee approve the application, as the development 

Page 15



16 

 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
28 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

would not overlook the current residents; some of the trees referred to in the report 
were diseased and would require to be removed; and she did not feel that the 
application would have a detrimental effect on the area. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the procedural motion and to undertake a site visit on a date to be determined. 
 
 
PLANNING DIGEST - EPI/14/150 
 
8. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which advised of an appeal which had been upheld by the Scottish 
Government in relation to Standing Stones, Dyce (130119). 
 
The report recommended – 
that the Committee note the outcome of the appeal decision. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
- RAMSAY MILNE, Convener 
 
 

Page 16



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

HOPETOUN GRANGE, LAND TO NORTH OF 
 
PARTIAL AMENDMENT TO PLANNING 
APPLICATION REF P130029 TO ALLOW FOR 
AN ADDITIONAL 20 UNITS AND CHANGE OF 
HOUSE TYPES    
 
For: Persimmon Homes 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P140153 
Application Date:       06/02/2014 
Officer :                     Jane Forbes 
Ward : Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone(B Crockett/G 
Lawrence/N MacGregor/G Samarai) 

Advert  :  
Advertised on:  
Committee Date: 19 June 2014 
Community Council : No response 
received 
 

 

 
 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until an amended legal agreement between the 
applicant and the Council has been secured identifying developer 
contributions towards: primary education; community facilities; sports and 
recreation; core path networks; and the strategic transport fund.  

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 17



 
DESCRIPTION 
The application site, which was formally land in agricultural use, but identified in 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) as an opportunity site for 
residential development (OP20), extends to some 1.27ha, and forms part of a 
larger development site of some 3.3ha.  Hopecroft Avenue lies to the east, whilst 
Hopetoun Grange is to the south, beyond a row of detached dwellings subject to 
planning application Ref: 130029. To the west lies an area of agricultural land 
extending to some 106 hectares, identified in the Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan as an Opportunity Site (OP30) for 1940 homes, and to the north is the main 
A96 Aberdeen/Inverurie Trunk Road. The entire 3.3ha site was the subject of a 
planning application (Ref 130029), submitted in January 2013 for a development 
of 65 residential units, associated infrastructure and landscaping, with consent 
granted at the Planning Development Management Committee in September 
2013, subject to conditions and the applicant entering into a legal agreement.   
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Ref A5/1536 – Detailed planning consent was sought in August 2005 for the 
erection of 40 houses, over an area includingpart of the current application site 
(2.75 ha).  In 2005 the site was zoned as GB1 (Green Belt), and on this basis the 
proposal was considered contrary to both structure plan and local plan policy, 
resulting in a Development Plan Departure Hearing being held in December 
2005.  The planning application was subsequently considered by the Planning 
Committee on 19 January 2006, at which point the Committee resolved to 
express a willingness to approve, subject to conditions and an appropriate legal 
agreement, and for the application to be forwarded to the Scottish Ministers.  The 
applicants withdrew this application in February 2008.  
 
Ref 121283 – Proposal of application notice submitted in September 2012 for the 
‘erection of residential units including roads, infrastructure and landscaping’.  
 
Ref 121578 – An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) screening opinion 
request, for a proposed residential development, on land to the north of 
Hopetoun Grange, Aberdeen City Council advised that it did not consider that 
EIA was required on 5 December 2012.  
 
Ref 130029 – Proposal for detailed planning consent for the erection of a 
residential development comprising 65 dwellings, with associated infrastructure 
and landscaping, was granted conditional consent by the Planning Development 
Management Committe on 26 September 2013, subject to the applicant entering 
into a legal agreement with the Council to secure developer contributions. This 
legal agreement was concluded and planning permission was issued on 15 
January 2014.  
 
PROPOSAL 
Detailed planning permission is now sought for an amendment to the 2013 
planning permission, Ref: 130029,  which proposed 65 residential units.  An  
additional 20 properties would now replace 28 previously approved, giving a total 

Page 18



of 48 dwellinghouses within an area of 1.27ha.  This would result in an overall 
increase across the wider 3.3ha site from 65 to 85 dwellinghouses.   
 
Layout 
The proposed development would comprise buildings arranged either side of a 
shared surface access road which forms a central loop, as was previously 
approved as part of the original application.  The route of the shared surface road 
does not change as a result of the proposal. 
 
Proposed Houses 
The 48 properties would cover a range of 12 house types and comprise: 24 
detached (6 x 3 bed, 9 x 4 bed, 9 x 5 bed), 12 semi-detached (3 bed) and 12 
terraced properties (3 x 2 bed, 2 x 3 bed, 7 x 4 bed). 5 of the 48 dwellings would 
be ‘affordable’.   
 
The various house types would be arranged across the site, with terraced and 
semi-detached properties interspersed with detached.  The 5 affordable 
properties would comprise three 2 bed and two 3 bed terraced units. 
 
Open Space and Landscaping 
An area of public open space extending to approximately 1180m² was approved 
as part of the original permission and this  lies immediately west of this site, and 
would therefore not be affected by the proposal..   
 
A detailed plan of landscaping provision for the wider 3.3ha site was controlled by 
a condition of the original permission and has already been submitted and 
deemed acceptable, however a condition has nevertheless been applied 
requiring the submission of amended plans directly associated to this application, 
to secure appropriate landscaping for individual properties and take account of 
the changes which this proposal has had on the previously approved 
garden/driveway layouts. 
  
Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140153 
 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
A Planning Statement was submitted in support of the application. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because the Council has 
received more than 5 letters of objection. Accordingly, the application falls outwith 
the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
 

Page 19



CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – No objection.  Advise the granting of planning consent 
should be conditional on an appropriate legal agreement being in place, requiring 
payment of the strategic transport fund contribution. 

 
Aberdeen International Airport – Response received.  No objection to the 
proposal based on a maximum development height of 9.2 metres.  In the event 
that cranage or scaffolding is required at a higher elevation than that of the 
planned development, then this must be subject to separate consultation with 
Aberdeen International Airport.    
 
Transport Scotland –  No objection, provided the following conditions are 
applied: 
 

• There shall be no means of direct vehicular access to the trunk road. 
Pedestrian access to the trunk road shall be restricted to the existing 
footpath immediately to the west of the site. 

• The applicant shall liaise with Transport Scotland and its Operating 
Company in regard to the timing, traffic management and standard of 
construction required for the pipeline crossing under the trunk road. 

 
Environmental Health – No objection.  Confirmed the noise assessment report 
submitted to purify Condition No. 2 of 130029 was acceptable.  Informative 
requested regarding installation of attenuation trickle vents.  
 
Developer Contributions Team - Appropriate level of affordable housing is 
proposed on site (25%), according to the overall development.  However, the 
developer should also provide financial contributions towards –  
 

• Primary school education; 

• Community facilities; 

• Sports and Recreation; 

• Core Paths network; and 

• Strategic Transport Fund (to be confirmed by Roads Projects Team). 
 

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) - No objection, given 
satisfaction with the information submitted. 
 
Scottish Water – No objection. 
 
Scottish Environment Protection Agency – No objection, given satisfaction 
with the information submitted. 
 
Community Council – No response received. 
 
 
 

Page 20



REPRESENTATIONS 
A total of 26 letters of representation have been received.  Objections raised 
have been summarised below and relate to the following matters:- 
 

1. Over-development of the site; 
2. Adverse impact on existing road network, which is already congested; 
3. Poor quality of house design; 
4. Increased inconvenience due to construction work ; 
5. Proximity of development to existing dwellings;  
6. Lack of neighbour notification; 
7. Alterations to footpath/cycle link; 
8. Altered location of affordable accommodation;   
9. Impact of airport noise on future residents; 
10. Inadequate parking within the wider site;  
11. Overshadowing of neighbouring properties;  
12. Impact on  existing views; 
13. Impact on privacy;  
14. Proposed development would have an adverse impact on local services 

and infrastructure capacity; 
15. Loss of green space and impact on trees; and  
16. Inadequate Pre-Application Consultation process. 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
National Policy and Guidance   
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) – This is the statement of Scottish Government 
policy on land use planning, and includes the Government’s core principles for 
the operation of the planning system and concise subject planning policies.  The 
general policy relating to sustainable development and the subject policy relating 
to Housing are relevant material considerations. 

 
Designing Places is the statement that sets out the Government’s expectations of 
the planning system to deliver high standards of design in development projects 
and is a relevant material consideration. 
 
PAN 2/2010 (Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits). This document 
outlines how the planning system can facilitate the development of affordable 
homes by way of supplying a mixture of tenures which are affordable and of a 
high standard of design in order to contribute to the creation of sustainable, 
mixed communities.  
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas) - The site is zoned under Policy H1 (Residential 
Areas).  Proposals for new residential development, and householder 
development, will be approved in principle, provided it: 

• does not constitute overdevelopment;  

• does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 
surrounding area; and 

• does not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space. 
 

Page 21



Policy H3 (Density) - The City Council seeks an appropriate density of 
development on all housing allocations and windfall sites.  All residential 
developments of over one hectare must: 

• meet a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare (net).  Net dwelling 
density  includes those areas which will be developed for housing and 
directly associated uses, including access roads within the site, garden 
ground and incidental open space; 

• have consideration of the site’s characteristics and those of the 
surrounding area; 

• create an attractive residential environment and safeguard living 
conditions within the development; and 

• consider providing higher densities in the City Centre, around local 
centres, and public transport nodes. 

 
Policy H4 (Housing Mix) - Housing developments of larger than 50 units are 
required to achieve an appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes, in line with a 
masterplan, reflecting the accommodation requirements of specific groups, in 
particular families and older people.  This mix is in addition to affordable housing 
contributions. 
 
Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) - To ensure high standards of design, 
new development must be designed with due consideration for its context and 
make a positive contribution to its setting.  Factors such as siting, scale, massing, 
colour, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of building elements, 
together with the spaces around buidlings, including streets, squares, open 
space, landscaping and boundary treatments, will be considered in assessing 
that contribution.   
 
Policy D2 (Design and Amenity) - In order to ensure the provision of appropriate 
levels of amenity certain principles will be applied, including: 

• Privacy shall be designed into higher density housing. 

• Residential development shall have a public face to a street and a private 
face to an enclosed garden or court. 

• All residents shall have access to sitting-out areas.  This can be provided 
by balconies, private gardens, terraces, communal gardens or other 
means acceptable to the Council. 

• Individual houses within a development shall be designed to make the 
most of opportunities offered by the site for view and sunlight.   

• Development proposals shall include measures to design out crime and 
design in safety. 

• External lighting shall take into account residential amenity and minimise 
light spillage into adjoining areas and the sky. 

 
Policy I1 (Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions) - Development 
must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities required to 
support new or expanded  communities and the scale and type of developments 
proposed.  Where development either individually or cumulatively will place 
additional demands on community facilities or infrastructure that would 

Page 22



necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the 
Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to the cost of providing or 
improviing such infrastructure or facilities.   
 
Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) - New developments 
will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise 
the traffic generated.  Maximum car parking standards are set out in 
Supplementary Guidance on Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards 
that different types of development should provide.  
 
Supplementary Guidance 
Hopecroft Planning Brief 
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Residential Development  
The application site forms part of a wider opportunity site (OP20) which is 
identified in the ALDP by Policy H1 (Residential Areas), albeit with an indicative 
allocation of 30 units.  The 2013 approval (Ref 130029)  (65 dwellings) further 
established that the principle of residential development across the whole 3.3 
hectares of the OP20 site was acceptable, and that such development would not 
affect the existing residential character and amenity of the area.  This proposal 
seeks an additional 20 dwellings on part of that wider approval, and as such in 
assessing the proposal against Policy H1 it is considered that such development 
would not affect the residential character and amenity of the surrounding area, 
nor result in the loss of protected open space.  It is also necessary to establish 
whether it would constitute overdevelopment, and this is considered more fully 
below.   
 
Density 
Concerns have been raised in relation to the density of development now 
proposed, given that the site has an allocation of 30 homes within the current 
local development plan, rather than the 85 which would now result.  However, in 
examining the reasons behind the low level of units allocated to the wider 3.3ha 
site, where current policy (H3) could in theory seek a minimum of 99 homes, it is 
clear that the historic allocation figure has been carried forward from previous 
local plans (Green Spaces – New Places, 2004; Aberdeen Local Plan, 2008) 
without an adjustment having been made to the original allocation figure, to better 
reflect current policy expectations on density.  Furthermore, the allocation does 
not take account of the significant change to the Aberdeen International Airport 
noise contour map, which almost entirely removes previous limitations on 
development within the site.  These matters were raised as part of the Hopecroft 
Planning Brief, which was approved by the Development Management Sub-
Committee and ratified as Supplementary Guidance to the Aberdeen Local 

Page 23



Development Plan by the Scottish Government in June 2013, and provided the 
basis of the site being developed for residential use with an indicative capacity for 
around 65 units. 
 
Current policy expectation of both the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic 
Development Plan and ALDP (Policy H3), is such that all residential development 
of over one hectare must meet a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare.  
The previous application for 65 dwellings on the 3.3ha site achieved a density of 
20 units per hectare, within an area where density of development ranges 
between 20 and 35 units per hectare.  If this current proposal were considered in 
isolation, the 48 units across the 1.27ha site would equate to a density of some 
38 units per hectare, which is higher than what is typical of the surrounding area.  
However, this application site clearly forms part of the wider 3.3ha Hopetoun 
Grange development area, and on that basis, the increase in overall residential 
units from 65 to 85 would equate to a density across that site of just 26%, a level 
which still sits below the minimum sought via H3, but which nevertheless 
represents density levels within the neighbourhood.  Taking all of the above into 
account, it is considered that the level of development being sought is 
appropriate and would not constitute over-development of the site, and as such 
the proposal would be in accordance with Policy H3 (Density), and also 
sufficiently compliant with Policy H1 (Residential Areas).  
 
Layout, Design, Scale and Form of Development 
‘Designing Places’ sets out the Government’s expectations of the planning 
system to deliver high standards of design and outlines what the Government 
considers to be successful places, including being ‘distinctive’, ‘safe and 
pleasant’, ‘easy to get to and move around’ and ‘welcoming’.  It is considered that 
these broad objectives have been suitably achieved within the design and layout 
of the development. 
 
Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) in the ALDP seeks to ensure that all 
development is designed with due consideration  for its context.  In this respect, 
whilst public concerns have been raised with regards the quality of design of the 
proposal, it is particularly relevant that the design and finish of the properties 
would be entirely in keeping with those already granted consent across the wider 
site, with finishes including: a mix of off-white render; grey coloured stone base 
course and detailing; and slate grey tiled roofs.  Whilst acknowledging that the 
proposal would see an increase in density of development, with a move away 
from the concentration of detached properties towards a mix of detached, semi-
detached and terraced properties, which is perhaps more in line with the 
surrounding neighbourhood, it is worth noting that the general pattern and layout 
of the development, either side of the shared surface internal loop road, has been 
retained, with all properties securing an acceptable level of garden ground and 
conditions attached to ensure that the detail of the boundary treatments and the 
landscaping of the site is appropriate. The proposal would see no loss to the level 
of open space provision approved for the wider site, nor have any additional 
impact on trees, and in particular those being retained along the eastern 
boundary of the site.   
 

Page 24



Concerns have been raised regarding the impact of the proposed development 
on existing privacy and views, and the overshadowing of neighbouring properties.  
It is worth noting that this new application would bring one of the proposed 2 
storey detached properties (Plot 47) closer to the mutual boundary with its 
nearest neighbouring property at No 27 Hopecroft Drive by one metre, thus 
resulting in a separation distance of some 14.5 metres between properties.  
However, taking account of the minimal change in separation distance being 
proposed, that the previous approval was also for a 2 storey detached property, 
and that the only window opening included at 1st floor level, and facing the 
boundary / rear gardens of Hopecroft Drive, serves a bathroom, both for this 
proposal and the previous, it is considered that there would be no increase in 
overshadowing or privacy and any additional visual impact would be minimal.  
Whilst the proposal would see the introduction of 2½ storey townhouses, these 
would be centrally located within the site, distant from any boundary, and give 
rise to an increase in the maximum ridge level of previously approved dwellings 
by just 1 metre, with the result that their inclusion within the proposed 
development would have minimal visual impact from outwith the site.  Taking all 
of the above into account, it is considered that the proposal is suitably compliant 
with Policy D1.   
 
The proposed development of 48 dwellings achieves a successful mix of house 
types and sizes, with 12 house types accommodated across the 1.27ha, 
including 2 bedroom terraced properties, 3 bedroom semi-detached, 4 bedroom 
townhouses and 5 bedroom detached family dwellings. This contributes further to 
the existing mix, which was achieved on the entire 3.3ha site, thereby ensuring a 
wider range of accommodation.  Whilst it is worth noting that this application in 
itself would, in theory, not be required to comply with Policy H4, which applies to 
housing developments of 50 units or more, it is nevertheless of some merit that 
the mix of house types is further improved across the 3.3ha site as a result of this 
application, and on this basis the proposal is considered compliant with Policy H4 
(Housing Mix), which seeks to encourage a range of sizes and house types.   
 
The proposal is deemed to be suitably compliant with Policy D2 (Design and 
Amenity), with the layout and design of the proposed dwellings allowing for the 
provision of private garden ground to the rear of all properties, with a public 
frontage onto either a street or footpath/cycleway and a private face to a garden.  
A condition has been applied to ensure details of the boundary enclosures are 
submitted for agreement.  Although other criteria are contained within Policy D2 
(Design and Amenity), these are not directly relevant to the assessment of this 
specific proposal.   
 
Traffic Impacts, Access Arrangements and Car Parking 
The Roads Projects Team did not consider that the proposed increase in 20 
dwellings across the wider Hopetoun Grange site warranted any amendment to 
the Transport Statement, which was submitted in support of the original 
application. Whilst concerns have been raised by local residents in relation to the 
impact the proposed development may have on existing traffic levels and parking 
provision, it should be noted that the Roads Projects Team are satisfied that the 
proposal meets with the required parking standards and have raised no concerns 

Page 25



with regards traffic generation as a result of the proposal.  Neither has the 
internal road layout changed as a result of the proposed development.  
 
The Roads Projects Team has provided detail on the strategic transport fund 
contribution applicable to this application, with payment to be secured by means 
of an amended Section 75 Agreement. Conditions have been attached to ensure 
improved connections are provided between the site and adjacent footpaths and 
for the upgrading of public transport passenger facilities. Taking the above into 
account, it is considered that the proposal is in accordance with the general 
principles of ‘Designing Streets’, a government statement which seeks to 
promote pedestrian friendly developments, and meets with the requirements of 
Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development), Policy I1 
(Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions), and the Supplementary 
Guidance on Transport and Accessibility.  
 
Affordable Housing/Developer Contributions 
The Developer Contributions Team stated that the increase in numbers on site by 
20 would now equate to an additional 5 units, therefore a total of 21 units would 
now be required.  The developer has included 5 affordable terraced properties in 
addition to the 16 affordable flatted properties being delivered as part of the 
original proposal.  This allocation would be delivered on site, and on that basis 
the proposed development is deemed compliant with the principles outlined in 
PAN 2/2010 (Affordable Housing and Housing Land Audits) which seeks to 
facilitate the development of affordable housing in order to secure sustainable, 
mixed communities, and is also in accordance with Policy H5 (Affordable 
Housing) which seeks 25% of the total number of units to be provided as 
affordable housing.   
 
In terms of Policy I1 (Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions), whilst 
public concerns have been raised regarding the impact of the proposed 
development on local services and existing infrastructure, a legal agreement can 
secure contributions to be used for off-setting the impact of the development on: 
primary school education, community facilities, sports and recreation, and the 
core paths network, in addition to the Strategic Transport Fund as outlined 
above.   
 
Relevant Planning Matters Raised in Written Representations 
A range of matters raised in the representations submitted have been addressed 
in the appropriate sections above, including issues relating to: design; density; 
impact upon residential amenity; impact on infrastructure and local services; 
traffic; car parking; open space; and trees.  Although certain matters raised are 
not material considerations, such as the inconvenience of the construction work 
and the impact on existing views, any matters not previously dealt with are 
discussed below. 
 

• Concerns have been raised regarding local residents not being adequately 
notified of the proposed development. However, the required level of 
neighbour notification was undertaken by Aberdeen City Council as 
planning authority.  Concerns were also raised regarding an inadequate 

Page 26



consultation process.  It is worth noting that the (Pre-application 
Consultation) PAC undertaken for the original application related to a 
proposal for the ‘Erection of Residential Units on Land to North of 
Hopetoun Grange including infrastructure & Landscaping’, and the 
requirement for such consultation was based on the proposal falling within 
the category of major development.  It is noted that the number of 
residential units indicated within PAC (around 65) sat below that which 
would now take place, although the site area remains the same (3.3ha). 
Notwithstanding this, it is considered by Aberdeen City Council as 
planning authority that there is no requirement to undertake further pre-
application consultation (PAC).  Taking into account that neither the level 
of development proposed (48 units) nor the area of the application site in 
question (1.27ha) would result in the proposal falling within the criteria of 
major development, it is also considered that the variation which this 
application would give rise to, in terms of what has previously been 
granted consent is not of a degree which would merit further public 
consultation, given that the residential nature of the original proposal 
under which pre-application consultation took place has not changed, and 
that concerns relating to density have been fully evaluated in the analysis 
above.   

• Although concerns have been raised regarding the likely impact of airport 
noise on future residents of the development site, based on the findings of 
the noise report submitted in support of the original application for the 
entire 3.3ha site, and which is clearly also relevant to this new application, 
along with the findings of a subsequent 3 day noise assessment, the 
Council’s Environmental Services Team have raised no objection to the 
proposal, and an informative has been attached with regards the 
installation of attenuation trickle vents.  

• Concerns have been raised in relation to alterations to the layout of 
footpath/cycle links and the siting of affordable accommodation, however 
neither relate to development contained within the red line boundary of this 
application and are being addressed separately, in relation to the original 
planning permission (Ref: 130029).  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to withhold the issue of 
the consent document until an amended legal agreement between the 
applicant and the Council has been secured identifying developer 
contributions towards: primary education; community facilities; sports and 
recreation; core path networks; and the strategic transport fund.  
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Planning legislation requires that planning applications are determined in 
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  The site is zoned under Policy H1 (Residentified Areas) in the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan, and on this basis the principle of residential 
development is considered acceptable. 
 

Page 27



The proposal is deemed suitably compliant with relevant national and local plan 
policy and guidance, including Scottish Government policy statements on 
'Designing Places' and a range of local plan policy, including Policy H1 
(Residential Areas), Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking), Policy D2 (Design 
and Amenity), and Policy H3 (Density). 
 
The proposal has also been deemed acceptable in terms of its compliance with a 
range of supplementary guidance, including delivery of affordable housing on site 
at a level of 25%, and ensuring an appropriate level of developer contributions is 
secured including towards primary education, community facilities, recreation, 
core path networks and the strategic transport fund, through the signing of a legal 
agreement. 
 
Taking the above into account it is considered that the proposed development 
proposal should be supported as it largely conforms to all relevant national and 
local plan policies. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
 (1)  that the hereby approved development shall not be occupied unless the lane 
to the west of the site, between the A96 and the southern boundary of plots 
22/23, as shown hatched on drawing nuber DL002-85 Rev c and dated 12 March 
2013,is upgraded to an adoptable standard for pedestrians and cyclists.  
Notwithstanding that the phasing of construction on site may impact on when 
safe access and use of the path by pedestrians may be available,  details of the 
proposed upgrading work to the path must nevertheless be submitted to 
and approved by the planning authority, and the upgrading work must 
be completed prior to any residential unit being occupied - in order 
to ensure that the proposed development offers access to more 
sustainable forms of travel to and from the development 
 
(2)  that no part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied 
unless a schedule of work relating to upgrading of bus shelters, 
seating, lighting, timetable information and boarding kerbs for bus 
stops on the A96 and on Sclattie Park has been submitted to and 
approved by the planning authority, and subsequently the upgrading 
work has been implemented prior to the occupancy of any residential 
unit implemented - in order to encourage more sustainable forms of 
travel to and from development 
 
(3)  that no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take 
place, nor shall any part of the development hereby approved be 
occupied, unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the planning authority, a detailed scheme of site and plot 
boundary enclosures for the entire development hereby granted 
planning permission, which scheme shall include no boundary enclosure 

Page 28



above a maximum height of 1 metre being permitted to the front of any 
residential unit within the development hereby approved.  None of the 
buildings hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied unless 
the said scheme has been implemented in its entirety, as it relates to that building 
- in order to preserve the amenity of the neighbourhood and in the interests of 
road and public safety 
 
(4)  that no construction work pursuant to the planning permission hereby 
approved shall be undertaken by cranage or scaffolding of a height 
greater than 9.2 metres above ground level without prior consultation 
and approval of Aberdeen International Airport - in order to avoid 
endangering the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of 
Aberdeen International Airport 
 
(5)  that there shall be no means of direct vehicular access from the 
application site to the trunk road (A96).  Pedestrian access to the 
trunk road shall be restricted to the pedestrian / cycle path imediately to the west 
of the site - to minimise interference with the safety and free flow 
of the traffic on the trunk road. 
 
(6)  that the applicant shall liaise with Transport Scotland, and its 
Operating Company, in regard to the timing, traffic management and 
standard of construction required for the pipleine crossing under the 
trunk road (A96) - to minimise interference with the safety and free 
flow of the traffic on the trunk road 
 
(7)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing 
compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' 
supplementary guidance has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the planning authority, and any recommended measures 
specified within that scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions 
have been implemented in full - to ensure that this development 
complies with requirements for reductions in carbon emissions 
pecified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary 
Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
(8)  that no development hereby approved shall be carried out unless there has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority a 
detailed scheme of landscaping for the site, which scheme shall 
include indications of all existing trees and landscaped areas on the 
land, and details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development, and the proposed areas 
of tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, 
locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting - in the 
interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
(9)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved 
scheme of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting 
season following the completion of the development and any trees or 

Page 29



plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a size 
and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or in 
accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved 
in writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the 
amenity of the area. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
Environmental Services have provided confirmation that a noise 
assessment submitted by the developer was sufficient to purify 
Condition 2 of the previous planning application (Ref 130029), and on 
that basis they have raised no objection to this new proposal, 
however they would recommend the installation of attenuation trickle 
vents in the bedroom of all properties across the 3.3ha site in order 
to reduce the impact of aircraft noise. 
 
 

 
 

Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

ABERDEEN AIRPORT SPORTS & SOCIAL 
CLUB, FARBURN TERRACE, DYCE 
 
ERECTION OF HELICOPTER HANGER     
 
For: Bond Offshore Helicopters 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   : P140209 
Application Date:   18/02/2014 
Officer :                   Paul Williamson 
Ward : Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone(B Crockett/G 
Lawrence/N MacGregor/G Samarai) 

Advert  : Section 34 -Proj. Pub. 
Concern 
Advertised on: 26/02/2014 
Committee Date: 19 June 2014 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
 Approve subject to conditions 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 67



 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site of 3837 square metres is located at the eastern edge of 
Aberdeen Airport at the corner of Farburn Terrace and Cordyce View.  The site is 
currently partly used as a surface car park for BP offshore employees, whilst the 
northern third is the applicant’s ‘Terminal 2’, a two storey building with stone clad 
walls, and profiled steel cladding, which was formerly used as a Sports and 
Social Club.  Further to the north are a row of residential properties. ‘Terminal 1’ 
is located on the west side of the airport, off Forties Road. 
 
To the south are further ‘airside’ hangars, associated with the wider Airport, while 
to the east is a two storey office block, and 1 ½ storey residential properties. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
120481 - External alterations including; the overcladding of the existing frontage, 
replacement windows and doors, formation of 2 no. new openings, and internal fit 
out of existing building. Change of use from a leisure facility (class 11) to 
passenger terminal, now known as Terminal 2, in the northern part of the current 
application.   
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Detailed Planning Permission is sought for the erection of a helicopter hangar 
adjacent to the applicant’s eastern terminal at Aberdeen Airport. 
 
The new building would have a footprint of 46 metres by 42.5 metres(1,955 m2).  
The floor plan indicates that the hangar would be used primarily to store six 
existing helicopters and provide changing facilities, a bothy, and stores grouped 
together in the south-east corner and covering an area of 90 square metres. 
 
The height of the building would be 13.2 metres to ridge level, and 9.4 metres to 
eaves level. 
 
The western elevation would contain three large roller shutter doors to allow 
access and egress of helicopters.  A small staff access door would be located at 
the eastern side of the south elevation. 
 
Proposed materials include a rendered basecourse, with profiled panels 
(goosewing grey) to the walls and roof. 
 
The final part of the proposal relates to the reconfiguration of existing parking on 
site.  At present there are 21 car parking spaces, with a further 6 spaces for 
waiting taxis.  The revised layout shall provide 22 spaces, retain the 6 taxi 
spaces, and introduce a one way system. 
 
 

Page 68



Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140209  
 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because the application has been the subject of six or more timeous 
letters of representation that express objection or concern about the proposal – 
representing a significant level of opposition to any local development proposal.  
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – No objection.  The applicant has confirmed that the 
hangar is for the storage of existing helicopters and no additional personnel or 
vehicle trips will be created as a result of this application.  The applicant has 
submitted a Travel Plan for the terminal, which highlights sustainable transport 
options available.  The car parking layout is acceptable.  Following the receipt of 
a Drainage Impact Assessment (DIA), it was confirmed that the details provided 
are acceptable. 
Environmental Health – No objection.  After raising initial queries in respect of 
noise, the agent has provided a satisfactory response to the queries, and 
accordingly, Environmental Health have no recommendations in relation to 
planning conditions.  It is understood that helicopters shall be towed to and from 
the hangar using tractors.  Notwithstanding noise from premises can be 
investigated by Environmental Health under current legislation relating to 
statutory nuisance. 
Developer Contributions Team – Given the size of the hangar and the 
formulaic method used by the Council to determine contributions from 
commercial developments, this scale of development will not attract developer 
contributions.  
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – No objection.  After 
reviewing the DIA, it was confirmed that the proposal is satisfactory.  All runoff 
water (roof and car park) will receive the required level of treatment.  The storage 
volume and discharge rates proposed are also sufficient and in line with the ACC 
requirements.    
Scottish Environment Protection Agency – Provided standing advice relating 
to small scale developments. 
Aberdeen Airport – No safeguarding objection.  Conditions should be attached 
relating to: cranes, bird hazard management, and lighting/signage.   

Page 69



Dyce and Stoneywood Community Council – Cautiously support this 
application.  The hangar may provide a significant noise mitigating effect for 
Dyce, and welcome the applicant’s invitation to the Community Council to 
contribute to the design.  Concern has been raised over the potential for 
helicopters to run ‘live’ outside the hangar, which would be to the detriment of 
properties on Cordyce View.  The Community Council also have concerns 
relating to traffic and parking, as the hangar will replace a car park used by 
offshore employees.  It may also be appropriate for the applicant to find 
alternative means of transport for employees in order to reduce traffic and 
inconsiderate parking in the area.  Planning conditions are also suggested 
relating to: 

- limit noise levels between 10:30pm and 6:00am; 
- floodlighting should be designed to minimise light pollution of nearby 

residences. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
Six letters of representation/objection have been received. The objections raised 
relate to the following matters: 
1) potential increase in congestion due to the loss of the existing car park; 
2) adverse visual impact of the hanger; 
3) loss of light; 
4) impact on view; 
5) Farburn Terrace is already overdeveloped; and, 
6) The hangar will result in an increase in noise due to noise reflection. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy BI4 Aberdeen Airport and Aberdeen Harbour states that within the 
operational land applying to Aberdeen Airport there will be a presumption in 
favour of uses associated with the airport. 
 
Policy T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development states that new 
developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken 
to minimise the traffic generated.  Transport Assessments and Travel Plans will 
be required for developments which exceed the thresholds set out in the 
Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance. 
 
Policy D1 Architecture and Placemaking states that to ensure high standards of 
design, new development must be designed with due consideration for its context 
and make a positive contribution to its setting.  Factors such as siting, scale, 
massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of building 
elements, together with the spaces around buildings, including streets, squares, 
open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, will be considered in 
assessing that contribution. 
 

Page 70



Policy D3 Sustainable and Active Travel  states that new development will be 
designed in order to minimise travel by private car, improve access to services 
and promote healthy lifestyles by encouraging active travel. 
 
Policy NE6 Flooding and Drainage states that where more than 100 square 
metres floorspace is proposed, the developer will be required to submit a 
Drainage Impact Assessment.  Surface Water Drainage associated with the 
development must: 

1) Be the most appropriate in terms of SUDS; and 
2) Avoid flooding and pollution both during and after construction. 

 
Supplementary Guidance 
 
Drainage Impact Assessments 
Transport and Accessibility 
 
Other Relevant Material Considerations 
 
None relevant to this application. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Proposals within the operational boundary of Aberdeen Airport, are the subject of 
a presumption in favour uses associated with its operation.  In this instance, the 
applicant is already operating from both the eastern and western side of the 
airport, providing helicopter services for the offshore industry.  The proposed 
facility is to accommodate the storage of six helicopters and is therefore clearly 
linked to the wider use of the airport.  As such, the general principle can be 
established against Policy BI4 of the Adopted Local Development Plan (ALDP). 
 
In respect of transportation matters, Roads Officers raise no objection and 
confirm the level of car parking proposed is acceptable.  The applicant has 
outlined that while an area of car parking would be lost, this had only been in 
temporary use during the time the plans for this application were being prepared, 
and that the current occupier is aware it shall no longer be available.   A Green 
Travel Plan already exists for the adjacent terminal, and could be adapted to 
incorporate staff associated with the new hangar.  This could be adequately dealt 
with by planning condition, and therefore accords with the principles contained 
within policies T2 and D3 of the ALDP. 
 
Policy D1 requires that development must be designed with due consideration for 
its context and make a positive contribution to its setting.  Whilst acknowledging 
that that the proposed hangar shall have a visual impact upon Farburn Terrace, it 

Page 71



would reflect the general style (scale and materials) of many of the hangars and 
industrial buildings in this area.  The height to eaves level would be 9.4 metres, at 
a separation distance of 25 metres from the residential properties on the eastern 
side of Farburn Terrace.  As such, it is not considered that the proposal would 
have an unduly detrimental impact upon those 1 ½ storey properties (which have 
a ridge height of approximately 7 metres) through loss of daylight/sunlight, and 
therefore a recommendation of refusal would not be warranted.   
 
Following the receipt of a Drainage Impact Assessment, it has been confirmed 
that the measures proposed meet with the requirements of Roads and Flooding 
Officers.  Accordingly, this matter can also be controlled adequately through the 
implementation of the approved scheme, thereby meeting the requirements of 
Policy NE6 of the ALDP. 
 
In respect of other consultation responses, the Developer Contributions Team 
have confirmed that the development does not require contributions.  Conditions 
relating to the use of cranes, building heights, and external lighting can be 
adequately controlled by condition, therefore meeting the requests of Aberdeen 
Airport.  In relation to the comments of the Dyce and Stoneywood Community 
Council, the operator already has a requirement to adhere to the operating hour 
restrictions which Aberdeen Airport apply, therefore there is no further need to 
attach a similar condition to this application.  The applicant has outlined the 
method by which helicopters would be towed to and from the operation aprons 
(where the helicopters are started-up and turned-off respectively).  
 
Other matters raised within representations which have not already been 
addressed above, shall be considered in turn: 

4) The impact on any private view is not a material planning consideration;  
5) The level of development within the general vicinity of Farburn Terrace 

has been the subject of individual planning applications which have been 
assessed on their individual merits, and are therefore not considered as 
part of this specific application; 

6) No objection has been highlighted by Environmental Health, and it is 
understood that the proposed scale of the hangar shall actually have a 
positive impact for adjacent residential properties through acting as a 
buffer, and therefore reducing the amount of noise from spilling eastwards 
to beyond the boundaries of the airport. 

 
In summary, while a relatively sizeable building, the proposed hangar would form 
part of an existing operation at the east side of the airport.  The siting and design 
of the hangar, and its separation from adjacent residential property would both 
minimise potential impacts through daylight loss and overshadowing, and also 
assist in reducing noise overspill to surrounding properties.  The level of 
associated movements associated with the hangar itself would be negligible, and 
it is not considered that there would be any additional detriment to the 
surrounding transportation network.  
 
 
 

Page 72



RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the proposal to provide a new hangar for helicopter storage and 
maintenance is considered to have a minimal effect on the character of Aberdeen 
Airport, or the adjacent area. The proposals are therefore considered to be in 
compliance with policies BI4 Aberdeen Airport and Harbour, D1 Architecture and 
Placemaking, T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development, and D3 
Sustainable and Active Travel of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
 (1)  that the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the car 
parking areas hereby granted planning permission have been constructed, 
drained, laid-out and demarcated in accordance with drawing No. B219 004 Rev 
B of the plans hereby approved or such other drawing as may subsequently be 
submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority. Such areas shall not 
thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the purpose of the parking of 
cars ancillary to the development and use thereby granted approval - in the 
interests of public safety and the free flow of traffic. 
 
(2)  that the development hereby granted planning permission shall not be 
occupied unless all drainage works detailed on Plan No B9917 100 or such other 
plan as may subsequently be approved in writing by the planning authority for the 
purpose have been installed in complete accordance with the said plan - in order 
to safeguard water qualities in adjacent watercourses and to ensure that the 
proposed development can be adequately drained. 
 
(3)  Development shall not commence until a bird hazard management plan has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. The 
submitted plan shall include details of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs which 
may be attractive to nesting, roosting and"loafing" birds. The management plan 
shall comply with the Advice Note 8 'Potential Bird Hazards from Building 
Design'. The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented, as approved, 
on completion of the development and shall remain in force for the life of the 
buildings. No subsequent alterations to the plan are to take place unless first 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority - it is necessary to 
manage the site in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds which could 
endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Aberdeen Airport. 
 
(4)  That no development shall take place unless there has been submitted to 
and approved in writing a detailed Green Transport Plan, which outlines 
sustainable measures to deter the use of the private car, in particular single 

Page 73



occupant trips and provides detailed monitoring arrangements, modal split 
targets and associated penalties for not meeting targets - in order to encourage 
more sustainable forms of travel to the development. 
 
(5)  The maximum development height shall be 70.183m AOD.  In the event that 
during construction, cranage or scaffolding is required, then their use must be 
subject to separate consultation with Aberdeen International Airport (AIA).  The 
applicant should ensure that the requirements of the British Standard Code of 
Practice for the safe use of Cranes is adhered to, and for crane operators to 
consult the aerodrome before erecting a crane in close proximity to an 
aerodrome - in the interests of the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of 
Aberdeen Airport. 
  
(6) That no development shall take place unless a scheme for proposed external 
lighting has been submitted to and approved in writing.  Thereafter the agreed 
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the details as so agreed - in 
order to ensure safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Aberdeen Airport. 
 

Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

RIVERSIDE EAST BUILDING, GARTHDEE 
ROAD, GARTHDEE CAMPUS 
 
VARIATION OF CONDITION 33 OF PLANNING 
REFERENCE P091761 (REFERS TO 
CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE DELIVERY)    
 
For: Robert Gordon University 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Section 42 Variation 
Application Ref.   :  P140573 
Application Date:    15/04/2014 
Officer :                   Paul Williamson 
Ward : Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee (I Yuill/A 
Taylor/G Townson) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 07/05/2014 
Committee Date: 19 June 2014 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
 Approve subject to conditions 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 83



 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site of approximately 23 hectares, covers the entire Robert 
Gordon University Campus at Garthdee. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
The western part of the campus includes buildings such as Grays School of Art 
and the Scott Sutherland School of Architecture, which have been on site since 
1966 and 1956 respectively.  The central part of the site has been more recently 
development over the last 15-20 years, and includes the Business and Health 
Schools, along with a Sports and Health Centre.  The eastern part, which 
extends down to the David Lloyd Sports Centre was a former touring caravan 
park, which has now been partially implemented for the latest phases of 
academic construction on site. 
 
Planning Application 091761 was submitted in November 2009 for a 
development of circa 35,000 sq.m of new teaching space, social facilities and 
staff accommodation, additional car parking, junction, road and environmental 
improvements.  That application was subsequently approved conditionally 
(subject to a s75) on 27 July 2010.  The initial phases of that building have now 
been completed, with construction on the last phase now underway. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Planning permission is sought to vary Condition 33 of Planning Permission 
091761 relating to the implementation of an extension to the Garthdee Controlled 
Parking Zone (CPZ).  Condition 33 states:  
 
“That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme 
for the extension of the Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) to include the 
uncontrolled area bounded by Auchinyell Road, Garthdee Road and the A90 
Anderson Drive, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  The agreed CPZ scheme shall thereafter be implemented in 
full prior to the occupation of the development and all costs borne by the 
applicant unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority”. 
 
In this instance, as the applicant has already occupied the development, and 
have sought an extension to the period to implement the extension of the CPZ for 
a period of 30 months beyond the date of occupation (21 May 2013).  In essence 
that would require the CPZ extension to be implemented by 21 November 2015. 
 
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   

Page 84



 

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140573 
 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because it has been the subject of six or more timeous letters of 
representation that express objection or concern about the proposal – 
representing a significant level of opposition to any local development proposal.  
In addition, the application has also been the subject of a formal objection by the 
local Community Council within whose area the application site falls.  
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – No objection for the variation of condition 33.  The ESPI 
Committee of 22 January 2013 resolved to allow for further monitoring of the car 
parking situation in Garthdee, in order to establish whether there was indeed a 
need for an extension to the CPZ to be provided.  Roads Officers have requested 
that any amended wording of the condition should allow a timescale for the CPZ 
to be introduced, once the need for the CPZ extension has been established. 
Environmental Health – No observations. 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) - No observations. 
Garthdee Community Council – Object to any further delay in amending the 
CPZ order.  They consider that the University should not be allowed to continue 
occupation of the development in breach of the condition.  A further comment 
related to the requirement for the University to accept its obligations to absolve 
the local community from any charges for Residential Exemption Permits.   
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
24 letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters: 

1) There is no provision for parking for students; 
2) Residents should not be charged for car parking permits; 
3) Lack of detailed plans online; 
4) Ground works have started prior to planning permission having been 

granted; 
5) The CPZ condition was imposed to protect residential amenity; 
6) RGU were to cover the costs of permits which was part of the legal 

agreement and condition; 
7) The proposal shall cause congestion. 
8) Residents were unaware that the free permits were time limited; 
9) Residents in adjacent Kaimhill do not have permits or are required to 

pay for parking; 

Page 85



10) Statutory notices from 2002 advised that permits would be available 
free of charge; 

11) The current CPZ is illegal; 
12) Insufficient information is available to allow the public to comment on 

the application; 
13) Parking is killing the green space in Garthdee; 
14) Pensioners should be exempt from charges; 
15) Parking restrictions should be limited to Mon to Fri 8am to 5pm; and, 
16) Students parking in Garthdee are posing a risk to residents and young 

children due to reckless driving. 
 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy CF1 Existing Community Sites and Facilities states that this policy applies 
to both land zoned as CF1 and to health, education and other community 
facilities in other Local Development Plan zonings.  Existing further education 
sites shall be used for mainly educational purposes.  Proposals for new or 
extended uses of these types on these sites will be supported in principle. 
 
Policy I1 Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions states that 
development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities 
required to support new or expanded communities and the scale and type of 
developments proposed.  Where development either individually or cumulatively 
will place additional demands on community facilities or infrastructure that would 
necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the 
Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to the cost of providing or 
improving such infrastructure or facilities.  Masterplans will be expected to reflect 
the infrastructure requirements and developer contributions identified and should 
include a Delivery Statement setting out details of how the proposed 
development, and supporting infrastructure, will be delivered. 
 
Policy T2 Managing the Transport Impact of Development states that new 
developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken 
to minimise the traffic generated.  Transport Assessments and Travel Plans will 
be required for developments which exceed the thresholds set out in the 
Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance.  Planning conditions 
and/or legal agreements may be imposed to bind the targets set out in the Travel 
Plan and set the arrangements for monitoring, enforcement and review. 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
 
Robert Gordon University Garthdee Masterplan/Development Framework 
 

The Robert Gordon University Garthdee Development Framework was approved 
as Supplementary Guidance by Planning Committee on 18 June 2009.  The 

Page 86



framework has been prepared as a guide for future development consolidating 
RGU’s teaching facilities at Garthdee. This replaces the previous Updated 
Masterplan Development Report (UMD Report) approved by Planning Committee 
in 2006. 

 

The Masterplan advises that it is founded upon the principle of concentrating 
academic development to the east of the site providing a very strong relationship 
to the main access/entrance from Garthdee Road. The Masterplan also 
specifically refers to the issue of car parking having been raised through the 
Consultation Process on the Masterplan.    “The University’s approach is to strike 
a balance between the desire amongst several of those individuals who 
commented for parking to be maximised whilst taking a responsible attitude in 
terms of environmental sustainability through seeking to discourage unnecessary 
car journeys to the campus.  To this end the University intends to provide 1200 
car parking spaces on the Garthdee site.  This provision, although lower than the 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) maximum permissible allowance, is a 
considerable increase over current figures.  When viewed in combination with the 
revised Campus Green Travel Plan, and the proposed time period extension of 
the Garthdee CPZ, the level of parking provision is deemed to be an optimum 
with regards to meeting the demands of the University, protecting the 
environment and minimising the impact on the surrounding community”. 

 

Further reference is also made where the Masterplan acknowledges ”there are 
currently some 383 off-site controlled car parking spaces used by the University 
within the existing Garthdee CPZ.  However parking surveys undertaken by 
Jacobs during spring 2009, indicate that current usage of the CPZ is only around 
109.  With anticipated demand on the CPZ being approximately 269 spaces (109 
existing demand plus 160 additional demand), it appears that the demands from 
additional trips can be accommodated through a combination of the retention of 
the existing CPZ and the proposed increase in on-campus car parking 
provisions”. 

 
Other Relevant Material Considerations 
 
None relevant to this application. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Section 42 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) 
requires the planning authority in determining the application only to consider the 
question of the condition(s) subject to which the previous planning permission 
should be granted. The planning authority has the option to approve the 
permission subject to new or amended conditions or to approve planning 
permission unconditionally. Alternatively the planning authority can refuse the 
application, which would result in the conditions on the original application 
remaining. 
 

Page 87



Main Considerations 
 
In this instance, the original condition required that the Controlled Parking Zone 
in Garthdee be implemented prior to the occupation of the latest phase of 
buildings at the eastern edge of the wider University Campus.  Unfortunately, the 
CPZ has not been progressed to a stage where it can be implemented, and 
therefore the buildings have in essence been occupied in breach of the 
aforementioned condition. 
 
At the meeting of the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee on 22 
January, a report was considered which detailed the results of an informal 
consultation by letter drop, which was carried out in the streets proposed for 
inclusion within the Garthdee CPZ.  The recommendation of that report, which 
was accepted by Members, outlined that the results of the exercise should be 
noted, and that the Committee instruct Officers to monitor the parking impact in 
the area following the opening of the expanded University campus, and report 
findings back to the Committee with further recommendations pertaining to the 
implementation of the CPZ.  It is understood that this report shall be considered 
by the meeting of the Enterprise, Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee on 4 September 2014.  Thereafter, should the Committee be minded 
to proceed with the CPZ extension the period for implementation would be 
approximately 9 to 12 months, which would in theory align with the extended 
period sought by the applicant. 
 
For such applications, the only aspect to consider is whether the request of the 
applicant to vary or modify the condition is reasonable.  In this case, and in light 
of the ongoing consultation on the proposed extension to the CPZ, it is 
considered that an extension to the period of time before implementation may be 
necessary is warranted.  The applicants have requested the provision of a period 
of 30 months from the date of occupation would run to 21 November 2015.  As 
noted above, a further report is anticipated to be considered in 4 September at 
the meeting of the ESPI Committee.  Thus should Members at that point resolve 
to implement the CPZ extension, Roads Officers would have approximately 14 
months to undertake the necessary processes and procedures.  It is therefore 
considered that the period sought by the applicants would align with the 
procedural requirements of the Council for such implementation to take place. 
 
Matters Raised in written Representations 
 
In respect of matters which were raised in objections, some of which were very 
detailed, the majority related to aspects which are not part of the consideration of 
this specific application.  The specific issue of costs associated with the provision 
of Parking Permits is a separate matter, and subject to its own legislative 
processes and procedures.  Parking is provided for students on campus, albeit 
not on a one space per student ratio, as staff and students alike are encouraged 
to travel to the campus by alternative means as supported through the 
University’s Green Travel Plan.  Ground works have commenced on site as part 
of the previous planning approval 091761, and therefore current works are not 
unauthorised.    

Page 88



 
Requests have been made both by objectors and the Garthdee Community 
Council for the phases of development previously approved through application 
091761, to be closed/unoccupied until such time as the extension to the CPZ has 
been put in place.  However, as per the requirements of Circular 4/1998 in 
respect of the use of planning conditions, it is not considered desirable, 
necessary or reasonable to prevent occupation of this educational institution.  
This is particularly relevant given that monitoring of the car parking position at 
Garthdee is ongoing, and is the subject of a separate legislative process.  
Accordingly, while it is unfortunate that the CPZ was not implemented prior to the 
occupation of the aforementioned buildings, progress towards the ultimate 
extension of the CPZ is underway.  Once the report to the ESPI Committee in 
September has been considered, it shall outline the findings of around 18 months 
of monitoring of the parking situation, including one complete University year.  As 
such, decisions as to whether the CPZ extension is necessary, and any 
associated costs can be established at that time, and not as part of the current 
planning application to extend the timescale to implement the relevant planning 
condition. 
 
In conclusion, the Planning Service recommends granting full planning  
permission to vary condition 33 of planning reference 091761 by removing the 
requirement to implement the extension to the CPZ by the time of occupation, 
and instead allowing a period of 30 months from the date of occupation in light of 
the on-going monitoring exercise in the affected area.  In varying the 
aforementioned condition, this decision would in effect create a new decision 
document for the development.  As such, it is no longer necessary to attach any 
planning conditions which have either been complied with or formally 
purified/discharged by the planning authority.  As such, the following conditions of 
the original planning decision 091761, are no longer necessary: 1, 2, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 
11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 24, 25, 26, 28, and 32.  The following 
conditions which have yet to be purified would therefore been appended should 
planning permission be approved: 29, 30, 31, and 34.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the proposal to vary the existing planning condition associated with the 
provision of the extended Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) has been 
justified as an ongoing monitoring exercise is underway to fully assess the 
requirement for an extended CPZ, and shall be subject to a separate legislative 
and consultation exercise in due course.  The development as implemented, is 
therefore still in accordance with the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, the 
approved Masterplan, and remains governed by Green Travel initiatives within 
the existing legal agreement. 
 
 

Page 89



CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
(1) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority, a scheme for 

the extension of the Garthdee Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) to include the 
uncontrolled area bounded by Auchinyell Road, Garthdee Road, and the 
A90 South Anderson Drive shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority.  The agreed CPZ Scheme shall thereafter be 
implemented in full within 30 months of the date of occupation of the 
development (which was 21 May 2013), and all costs associated with the 
promotion of the extension shall be borne by the applicant. 
 

(2) That on full implementation of the car parking provision as shown on the 
approved development layout the site operators shall prepare and have 
agreed with the local planning authority a revised Parking Monitoring Policy 
the recommendations of which shall be applied to agreed Green Travel Plan 
for the campus - to ensure the efficient operation of on site parking 
provision. 
 

(3) that prior to the completion of the development hereby approved the 
developers shall prepare a scheme of additional traffic calming measures 
within the campus which shall be agreed with the local planning authority 
and the agreed scheme implemented prior to the occupation of the 
development - in the interests of the safety of all road users and to restrict 
vehicle speeds within the campus. 
 

(4) That following completion of the development hereby approved the 
developers shall undertake a review of the junction safety requirements with 
regard to the operation of the site exit onto Garthdee Road.  Such a review 
shall be carried out annually and the recommendations of the review shall 
be implemented as agreed with the local planning authority.  Should, within 
a 5 year period following the opening of the development, the review 
indicate a requirement for a traffic light controlled junction at this location, 
the necessary works shall be carried out by and all costs borne by the site 
operator to the requirements of the local planning authority - in the interests 
of traffic safety. 
 

(5) No part of the development shall be occupied unless a financial contribution 
towards the provision of park and ride facilities to the south of Aberdeen has 
been paid to Transport Scotland Trunk Road Network Management 
Directorate.  The value of this contribution shall be agreed in writing with the 
planning authority in consultation with Transport Scotland Trunk Road 
Network Management Directorate – to ensure that the safety and free flow of 
traffic on the trunk road is not diminished. 

 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 

Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

FORMER ROYAL CORNHILL HOSPITAL, 
BERRYDEN ROAD, ABERDEEN 
 
DEMOLITION OF FORMER HOSPITAL 
BUILDINGS AND PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT OF 300 UNITS COMPRISING 
135 NEW BUILD HOUSES, 141 NEW BUILD 
FLATS AND CONVERSION OF FORMER 
HOSPITAL BUILDING TO FORM 24 FLATS, 
WITH ASSOCIATED CARPARKING, OPEN 
SPACE AND INFRASTRUCTURE  
 
For: Stewart Milne Homes, Barratt East Scotland, 
NHS Grampian 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130381 
Application Date:       21/03/2013 
Officer :                     Gavin Evans 
Ward : Midstocket/Rosemount (B Cormie/J 
Laing/F Forsyth) 

Advert  : Section 60/65 - Dev aff 
LB/CA 
Advertised on: 19/02/2014 
Committee Date: 19 June 2014 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 RECOMMENDATION:   Refuse 
 

Agenda Item 2.4

Page 111



DESCRIPTION 
The application site, which extends to 5.54ha, lies between Berryden Road, to 
the east, and May Baird Avenue, to the west. It is enclosed by residential 
buildings laid out along Chestnut Row to the north, with the new Cornhill Hospital 
(circa 1990) sitting between the application site and Westburn Road, to the south. 
 
The former Royal Cornhill Hospital site is a complex of unlisted buildings, 
consisting of Upper and Lower hospitals, built of granite in a classical style and 
formally laid out in a mature parkland setting. The site is enclosed along its 
Berryden Road frontage by a stone wall of 2.5-3m in height. There is a disused, 
gated vehicular access in the Berryden Road elevation, slightly north of the 
junction serving a retail park on the opposite side of Berryden Road. 
 
Notable tree belts are present along the northern boundary, screening the site 
from Chestnut Row, and the western boundary to May Baird Avenue. 
 
With the relocation of operations to the new Cornhill Hospital the buildings within 
the application site have fallen vacant and are surplus to the operational 
requirements of NHS Grampian.  
 
The site lies within the Rosemount and Westburn Conservation Area, and 
contains the Forbes of Newe Obelisk, which is category ‘C’ listed. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Application P130382, submitted in association with this application, seeks 
Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of the majority of the existing 
buildings. At time of writing, that application remains undetermined, however an 
update can be provided verbally to members at the committee meeting. 
 
PROPOSAL 
This application seeks detailed planning permission for a residential development 
of 300 units, comprising 135 houses, 141 new-build flats and 24 flats provided via 
the conversion of existing Upper Hospital buildings. 
 
The scale and form of new buildings would vary across the site, with 4 and 5 
storey blocks addressing Berryden Road and providing an identifiable street 
frontage to the development. The interior of the site would include the converted 
2½-3½  storey Upper Hospital buildings, along with new 3 and 4 storey flatted 
blocks and a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced houses. 28 ‘back-to-
back’ terraced houses are also provided. 
 
The site would be served principally by a new access formed on its eastern 
boundary with Berryden Road, opposite the junction into the adjacent retail park. 
Two secondary accesses, one of which would allow for pedestrian and cycle 
access only, would be provided to the west, onto May Baird Avenue.  
 
The proposal involves the demolition of the majority of the existing buildings 
present on the site, with the exception of 3 linked buildings forming part of the 

Page 112



Upper Hospital. These demolition works require separate approval of 
Conservation Area Consent, as noted above.. 
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -    
 

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=130381  
 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
The supporting documents available online include the following; 
 

- Design and Access statement 
- Pre-application Consultation (PAC) report 
- Tree survey 
- Site appraisal report 
- Indicative street visualisations 
- Geo-Environmental Desk Study Report 
- Transport Assessment 

Drainage Assessment 
 
PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION 
 
The proposed development was the subject to pre-application consultation, 
between the applicant and the local community in August 2012, as required for 
applications falling within the category of ‘major developments’, defined in the 
relevant ‘Hierarchy of Development’ Regulations. That consultation involved a 
public event, held on 27th August 2012 at the Aberdeen Northern Hotel. That 
event was advertised in the Aberdeen Press and Journal a week in advance. 
Posters advertising the event were displayed in local shops and community 
facilities. In addition a separate consultation event was held with local NHS 
Grampian staff. 
 
The main issues raised through these consultation events were as follows; 

 

• Scale of development seen to be excessive. 

• The main access onto Berryden Road requires careful consideration as 
there is already a busy junction to the retail park. 

• Concerns stated over increases in vehicular traffic using May Baird 
Avenue, particularly if access onto Berryden Road becomes congested. 

• Queries over the relationship between the development and ACC’s 
proposals for the widening of Berryden Road. 

• The obelisk should be retained. 

• Re-use of granite is supported. 

Page 113



• The privacy of vulnerable adults attending the hospital should not be 
compromised by the development. 

 
The submitted Pre-Application Consultation report outlines that building heights 
were reviewed as a result of the comments received, with significant numbers of 
2-storey buildings incorporated towards boundaries with the NHS estate. Also, 
the access point on the western boundary will be controlled to ensure that it is not 
available for unrestricted vehicular use.  
 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the the Planning Development Management 
Committee because more than 5 letters of objection have been received. 
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – Object raising the following issues: 
 
Car parking provision 
Car parking guidelines require that 575 rather than the proposed 531 spaces 
should be provided. A resultant shortfall of 44 spaces or 7% is identified. 
However, although the site lies within the ‘outer city’ car parking zone, it sits on 
the edge of the ‘inner city’ zone, where parking requirements are reduced. On 
that basis, this shortfall may be acceptable, provided the applicant demonstrates 
a robust car parking management plan for the communal spaces proposed. 
Accessible car parking spaces for disabled users have been identified by the 
applicant, and should be demarcated and signed accordingly. Earlier comments 
in relation to garage dimensions and cycle parking have been addressed to the 
satisfaction of Roads officers. 
 
Access 
The main access to the development, via Berryden Road, would initially be 
provided as a priority junction, with a right-turn arm formed on Berryden Road, 
before later being modified to form a traffic signal controlled crossroads on 
completion of the Berryden Corridor Improvement Scheme. Following input from 
the Council’s Roads Projects Team, it has been established that this 
arrangement would not be sufficient to serve the development, and it will be 
necessary for the signalisation to be employeded from the outset. Additionally 
material submitted to the Roads Projects Team by the applicants has failed to 
demonstrate that the proposals for the access junction would be adequately 
integrated with the Council’s proposals for the widening of Berryden Road, and it 
is suggested that the position of buildings would preclude the necessary 
intervisibility at the anticipated access junction. 
 
Appropriate measures should be identified to prevent vehicles from using the 
southern access onto May Baird Avenue, which is identified as being for 

Page 114



pedestrian and cyclist use only. In this regard the applicants have confirmed that 
a bollard arrangement will prevent vehicular use. 
 
Submissions made by the applicant indicate that only a short section of May 
Baird Avenue would be brought up to adoptable standard. The Council’s Roads 
Projects Team have reiterated that it will be necessary to upgrade the entire 
unadopted section of May Baird Avenue. It is noted also that the applicants are 
required to provide footways all along the western edge of the development, in 
order to provide necessary connections to the wider pedestrian network. 
 
Impact on local roads network 
The submitted TA and subsequent discussion with Roads officers have 
established that there would be an impact on two nearby road junctions: with 
both Maberly Street/Rosemount Place and Westburn Road/Caroline Place being 
over capacity, although theoretical mitigation can be achieved. Such mitigation 
measures should be costed and financial contributions sought accordingly. It is 
noted that it may not be practicable to implement those improvements to the 
identified junctions, in light of the intended ACC widening scheme, and therefore 
the contributions may be directed to other local network improvements which 
would not be abortive. 
 
Internal Layout 
It is noted that the internal layout has sought to address the aspirations of 
‘Designing Streets’. 
 
Delivery and service vehicles 
Swept-path drawings have been provided to address an earlier request. These 
demonstrate that large vehicles, such as refuse vehicles, would have to encroach 
upon the opposite side of the road at certain points. Thus it has not been 
demonstrated that refuse vehicles will be able to access the site satisfactorily. 
 
Drainage 
The submitted DIA is noted, although it is stated it must also be agreed with 
Scottish Water, SEPA and ACC’s flood prevention unit. 
 
Strategic Transport Fund (STF) 
As the proposed development site is listed on the Aberdeen Local Plan (2008) 
exemption table and is of a lower scale than identified in the adopted Royal 
Cornhill Hospital Development Brief, no contributions will be payable to the 
Strategic Transport Fund. 
 
Environmental Health – No objection, but note potential for some 
contamination. This should be ascertained by a risk-based site investigation in 
accordance with best practice, with the investigation commencing in advance of 
demolition. A study to this effect has been provided by the applicant, and 
Environmental Health colleagues have expressed their agreement with the 
recommendations therein. It is recommended that appropriate contaminated land 
conditions be attached to any approval, requiring that a ‘Phase II’ investigation be 

Page 115



carried out prior to demolition and (if found to be necessary) supplementary 
investigations to be carried out thereafter.  
 
Developer Contributions Team – Highlights the requirements of policies I1 
(Infrastructure and Developer Contributions) and H5 (Affordable Housing), 
including a requirement for 25% affordable housing, with an expectation of on-
site provision. 25% in this case equates to 75 units.  
 
Notes that the zoned primary school, Skene Square School, is projected to 
exceed capacity and based on this, financial contributions will be sought for 30 
additional pupils. Notes that Aberdeen Grammar School, the zoned secondary 
school, has capacity to accommodate the development, and therefore no 
financial contributions are required. 
 
Contributions are sought for improvements to public halls and community 
facilities, based on the increased usage attributable to a further 300 households. 
 
Contributions are also sought based on increased pressure placed on existing 
sports and recreation facilities, playing fields and library provision, arising from 
the increased population. 
 
Contributions are required for implementing or linking to the Core Paths Network. 
In this instance, access between the development site and local open space 
could be improved through the provision of a new footpath link. 
 
It is noted that the Council’s Roads Projects Team will advise on any 
contributions payable to the Strategic Transport Fund. 
 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) - Notes the development 
proposes to discharge treated surface water into the existing Scottish Water 
systems, and that any treatment of surface water run-off  from the development 
would represent an improvement on the existing situation. States that the 
Combined Sewer Overflow to the east of the development connects in to the 
Gilcomston Burn. 
 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) – No response. 
 
ACC Waste Strategy Team – The layout is not suitable for waste and recycling 
collection, with too many dead-ends and reversing areas. Details of bin stores 
are not sufficient to allow assessment of suitability. For proposed houses, paved 
spaces of 3mx1m, with paved access to the kerbside, are required in order to 
accommodate the necessary recycling and refuse bins. Kerbside collection will 
not be provided to properties which are not accessible – i.e. where there is no 
turning point for refuse vehicles, or excessive reversing is required. 
 
Scottish Environment Protection Agency – Object and request that further 
information be provided in relation to the treatment of surface water run-off from 
access roads, by using Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS). All prior to 
any grant of planning consent, to demonstrate that there is sufficient space in the 

Page 116



proposed site layout to accommodate the appropriate SUDS. Further information 
has been submitted direct to SEPA by the applicants, however this has been 
found to demonstrate that part of the internal road layout would not be served by 
the required 2 levels of SUDS treatment. The applicants have highlighted that the 
Council’s Roads Construction Consent requirements do not allow for SUDS 
measures to be positioned close to adoptable roads, which causes problems for 
the applicant in incorporating 2 levels of treatment in such locations. The 
applicants contend that the overall application of SUDS across the site 
represents a significant improvement on the current arrangements, where no 
SUDS or surface water attenuation is present.  
 
Update: following provision of further information demonstrating that satisfactory 
SUDS measures can be incorporated for all surface water run-off, SEPA have 
removed their objection, subject to a condition requiring agreement of detailed 
SUDS proposals with the planning authority, in consultation with SEPA. 
 
SEPA also request a condition, securing submission of a site-specific 
construction environmental management plan (CEMP). 
 
Community Council – Rosemount & Mile-End Community Council consider the 
scale of development excessive, and representative of overdevelopment of the 
site. The new access onto Berryden Road will cause further problems on an 
already busy road. Query whether traffic onto Berryden road would be limited to 
‘left turn only’, in the event that the Council’s plans for the widening of Berryden 
Road go ahead. Increased vehicular traffic onto May Baird Avenue also raises 
safety concerns for patients, residents and visitors to the Cornhill Hospital site. 
 
Transport Scotland – No objection to the proposal based on potential impact on 
the trunk roads network. 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer (ALO) - The initial consultation response 
from the ALO expressed concern at the extent of footpaths and pedestrian 
permeability through the site, which were considered to provide opportunities for 
easy access and egress for potential offenders. It was highlighted that users of 
pedestrian routes should feel safe, and that such routes should be wide, straight 
and well lit, with good levels of natural surveillance. Suggestions were made 
regarding the removal of several pedestrian routes. Concerns were expressed 
about unrestricted access to the rear of properties, via pedestrian routes. The 
height of landscaping should be restricted to allow good sight lines, particularly 
around parking areas and footpaths. Suggestions are made regarding levels of 
lighting, with uniformity of lighting rather than level of lighting being of greatest 
importance. 
 
Revisions to the proposal warranted re-consultation, with the subsequent 
response noting that earlier concerns regarding the degree of pedestrian 
permeability had been addressed. This reduced pedestrian permeability is 
supported. Locked gates to the rear of properties in the south-west corner of the 
site would restrict access appropriately adjacent to rear gardens. Best practice 
suggests that rear gardens should be enclosed by 1.8m fencing with lockable 

Page 117



gates. Earlier comments regarding landscaping and lighting remain. Recommend 
that the applicants seek to obtain a ‘Secured by Design Award’ for the entire 
development. 
 
Scottish Water – No objection. Notes that Invercannie Water Treatment Works 
and Nigg PIF Waste Water Treatment Works currently have capacity to service 
the proposed development.  
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Design Review Panel – An earlier version of the 
proposal was presented to the Design Review Panel in April 2013, thus 
discussion was based on the development proposed at that time, and the 
scheme has been changed substantially in the intervening period. The main 
points raised by the panel at that time are summarised as follows; 
 

• Consideration should be given to the orientation of the lines of buildings on 
the western part of the site so that they relate better to the existing 
residences and adjacent streets, 

• The materials and design should be appropriate and of a quality and style 
suitable for a conservation area. 

• There is an opportunity to have unusual types of trees to provide focal 
points within the site and reflect the existing tree mix around the new 
development, 

• The panel suggested the street elevation along Berryden Road might be 
made more substantial by reducing the space between individual blocks of 
flats and making it more street like. 
Careful consideration should be given to the nature of the external spaces 
and how they relate to each other. 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
11 letters objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters – 
 

1. All existing granite buildings should be retained and converted; 
2. The proposal represents over-development of the site; 
3. Increased traffic would cause problems in surrounding area, unless 

accompanied by improvements to the road network; 
4. Parking problems in the surrounding area would be exacerbated by the 

proposed development; 
5. No reference is made to road network improvements; 
6. Removal of habitat and impact on wildlife currently using the Cornhill site; 
7. Loss of existing healthy trees; 
8. Safety concerns over new footpath formed at end of Chestnut Row; 
9. Loss of privacy, specifically to properties on Barkmill Road; 
10. Absence of reference to cycle linkages; 
11. Provision should be made for an east-west cycle link through the 

development; 

Page 118



12. Concern that the proposal may result in May Baird Avenue attracting a 
significant increase in vehicle traffic – vehicle access should be taken from 
Berryden Road only; 

13. Consultation process was not adequately publicised; 
14. Request for clarification that schools in the area have capacity to serve the 

new development; and that 
15. Parking will be more difficult for staff and visitors to Cornhill Hospital 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
SPP is the statement of Scottish Government policy on land use planning, and 
includes the Government’s core principles for the operation of the planning 
system and concise subject planning policies. The general policy relating to 
sustainable development and subject policies relating to Open Space and 
Physical Activity, Historic Environment, Landscape and Natural Heritage, 
Transport and Housing are all relevant material considerations.  
 
Para. 110 sets out that the Scottish Government’s policy on the historic 
environment and guidance on relevant legislation is set out in the Scottish 
Historic Environment Policy (SHEP). This SPP, the SHEP and the Managing 
Change in the Historic Environment guidance note series published by Historic 
Scotland should be taken into account by planning authorities when preparing 
development plans and determining applications for listed building consent, 
conservation area consent or planning permission for development which may 
affect the historic environment. 
 
Creating Places 
Scotland's policy statement on architecture and place sets out the 
comprehensive value which good design can deliver. Advising that successful 
places can unlock opportunities, build vibrant communities and contribute to a 
flourishing economy.  
 
The document contains an action plan, that sets out the work that will be taken 
forward to achieve positive change. 
 
The statement is in four parts:  
 
1. The value of architecture and place; 
2. Consolidation and ambition; 
3. A strategy for architecture and place; and 
4. Resources, communications and monitoring.  
 
Designing Places  
This planning policy statement was launched in 2001 and sets out aspirations for 
design and the role of the planning system in delivering these. The aim of the 
document is to demystify urban design and to demonstrate how the value of 

Page 119



design can contribute to the quality of our lives. Designing Places is a material 
consideration in decisions in planning applications and appeals. It also provides 
the basis for a series of Planning Advice Notes (PANs) dealing with more 
detailed aspects of design. 
 
Designing Streets 
Designing Streets is the first policy statement in Scotland for street design and 
marks a change in the emphasis of guidance on street design towards place-
making and away from a system focused upon the dominance of motor vehicles. 
It has been created to support the Scottish Government’s place-making agenda 
and is intended to sit alongside Designing Places. 
 
Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) 
Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) is the statement of government 
policy on the protection and management of the historic environment. It seeks to 
make the best use of the historic environment in a sustainable way that secures 
its long term survival yet achieves the government’s wider aims of economic and 
social regeneration. 
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (SDP) 2014 
The SDP sets out the following key objectives for the growth of the City and 
Aberdeenshire: 
 
Population growth – To increase the population of the city region and achieve a 
balanced age range to help maintain and improve people’s quality of life. 
 
Quality of the environment - To make sure new development maintains and 
improves the region’s important built, natural and cultural assets. 

 
Sustainable mixed communities - To make sure that new development meets the 
needs of the whole community, both now and in the future and makes the area a 
more attractive place for residents and businesses to move to. 

 
Accessibility - To make sure that all new development contributes towards 
reducing the need to travel and encourages people to walk, cycle or use public 
transport by making these attractive choices. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions 
Development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities 
required to support new or expanded communities and the scale and type of 
developments proposed. Where development either individually or cumulatively 
will place additional demands on community facilities or infrastructure that would 
necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in existing provision, the 
Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to the cost of providing or 
improving such infrastructure or facilities. 
 
 

Page 120



Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been 
taken to minimise the traffic generated.  Transport Assessments and Travel 
Plans will be required for developments which exceed the thresholds set out in 
the Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance. Planning conditions 
and/or legal agreements may be imposed to bind the targets set out in the Travel 
Plan and set the arrangements for monitoring, enforcement and review.  
Maximum car parking standards are set out in Supplementary Guidance on 
Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards that different types of 
development should provide. 
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking 
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution. 
 
Policy D2: Design and Amenity 
In order to ensure the provision of appropriate levels of amenity certain principles 
will be applied, including the following: Privacy shall be designed into higher 
density housing. Residential development shall have a public face to a street and 
a private face to an enclosed garden or court. All residents shall have access to 
sitting-out areas. This can be provided by balconies, private gardens, terraces, 
communal gardens or other means acceptable to the Council. Individual houses 
within a development shall be designed to make the most of opportunities offered 
by the site for view and sunlight. Development proposals shall include measures 
to design out crime and design in safety. External lighting shall take into account 
residential amenity and minimise light spillage into adjoining areas and the sky. 
 
Policy D3: Sustainable and Active Travel 
New development will be designed in order to minimise travel by private car, 
improve access to services and promote access to services and promote healthy 
lifestyles by encouraging active travel. Development will maintain and enhance 
permeability, ensuring that opportunities for sustainable and active travel are both 
protected and improved. Access to, and movement within and between, new and 
existing developments will prioritise transport modes in the following order – 
walking, cycling, public transport, car and other motorised vehicles. 
 
Street layouts will reflect the principles of Designing Streets and will meet the 
minimum distances to services as set out in Supplementary Guidance on 
Transport and Accessibility, helping to achieve maximum levels of accessibility 
for communities to employment, essential services and areas of recreation.  
Existing access rights, including core paths, rights of way and paths within the 
wider network will be protected and enhanced. Where development proposals 
impact on the access network, the principle of the access must be maintained 
through the provision of suitable alternative routes. 
 

Page 121



D4: Aberdeen’s Granite Heritage 
The City Council will encourage the retention of granite buildings throughout the 
City, even if not listed or in a conservaion area. Conversion and adaptation of 
redundant granite buildings will be favoured. Within conservation areas, neither 
conservation area consent not planning permission will be given for the 
demolition or part removal of granite buildings (excepting those buildings that 
make an insignificant contribution to the character of the Conservation Area). 
 
Where a large or locally significant granite building that is not listed or in a 
conservation area is demolished, the City Council will expect the original granite 
to be used on the principal elevations of the replacement building.  
 
D5: Built Heritage 
Proposals affecting Conservation Areas will only be permitted if they comply with 
Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
D6: Landscape 
Development will not be acceptable unless it avoids significantly adversely 
affecting landscape characetr and elements which contribute to, or provide, a 
distinct ‘sense of place’ which point to being either in or around Aberdeen or a 
particular part of it. 
 
Policy H3 (Density) 
An appropriate density of development is sought on all housing allocations and 
on developments of over one hectare must meet a minimum density of 30 
dwellings per hectare, have consideration of the site’s characteristics and those 
of the surrounding area, create an attractive residential environment and 
safeguard living conditions within the development. 
 
Policy H4 (Housing Mix) 
Housing developments of larger than 50 units are required to achieve an 
appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes, in line with a masterplan, reflecting 
the accommodation requirements of specific groups, in particular families and 
older people. This mix is in addition to affordable housing contributions. 
 
Policy H5 (Affordable Housing) 
Housing developments of 5 or more units are required to contribute no less than 
25% of the total units as affordable housing. 
 
Policy CF1: Existing Community Sites and Facilities 
Existing healthcare sites shall be used primarily for healthcare and/or related 
medical and educational purposes. Where land or buildings become surplus to 
current or anticipated future requirements, alternative uses which are compatible 
with adjoining uses and any remaining community uses, will be permitted in 
principle. Large sites or sites in sensitive locations will be subject to a Planning 
Brief or Masterplan. 
 
 
 

Page 122



Policy NE4 (Open Space Provision in New Development) 
The City Council will require the provision of at least 2.8 hectares per 1000 
people of meaningful and useful public open space in new residential 
development. Communal or public open space should be provided in all 
residential developments, including those on brownfield sites. 
 
Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) 
There is a presumption against all activities and development that will result in 
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute 
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity, 
including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is irreplaceable. 
 
Policy NE6 (Flooding and Drainage) 
Development will not be permitted if: 
 
1. it would increase the risk of flooding:- 

- By reducing the ability of the functional flood plain to store and 
convey water; 

- Through the discharge of additional surface water; or 
- By harming flood defences. 

2. it would be at risk itself from flooding; 
3. adequate provision is not made for access to waterbodies for maintenance; or 
4. it would result in the construction of new or strengthened flood defences that 
would have a significantly damaging effect on the natural heritage interests within 
or adjacent to a watercourse. 
 
Where more than 10 homes or greater than 100m2 floorspace is proposed, the 
developer will be required to submit a Drainage Impact Assessment (see 
Supplementary Guidance on Drainage Impact Assessments). Surface water 
drainage associated with development must: 
 

- be the best available in terms of SUDS; and 
- avoid flooding and pollution both during and after construction. 

 
Connection to the public sewer will be a pre-requisite of all development where 
this is not already provided.  Private wastewater treatment systems in sewered 
areas will not be permitted. In areas not served by the public sewer, a private 
sewer treatment system for individual properties will be permitted provided that 
the developer demonstrates that there will be no adverse effects on the 
environment, amenity and public health. 
 
NE8 (Natural Heritage) 

1. Applicants should submit supporting evidence for any development that 
may have an adverse effect on a protected species demonstrating both 
the need for the development and that a full range of possible alternative 
courses of action has been properly examined and none found to 
acceptably meet the need identified.  
 

Page 123



2. An ecological assessment will be required for a development proposal 
on or likely to affect a nearby designated site or where there is evidence to 
suggest that a habitat or species of importance (including those identified 
in the UK and Local Biodiversity Action Plans) exists on the site. 
 

3.  No development will be permitted unless steps are taken to mitigate 
negative development impacts. All proposals that are likely to have a 
significant effect on the River Dee SAC will require an appropriate 
assessment which will include the assessment of a detailed construction 
method statement addressing possible impacts on Atlantic Salmon, 
Freshwater Pearl Mussel and Otter. Development proposals will only be 
approved where the appropriate assessment demonstrates that there will 
be no adverse affect on site integrity, except in situations of overriding 
public interest. 
 

4. Natural heritage beyond the confines of designated sites should be 
protected and enhanced. 
 

5. Where feasible, steps to prevent further fragmentation or isolation of 
habitats must be sought and opportunities to restore links which have 
been broken will be taken. 
 

6. Measures will be taken, in proportion to the opportunities available, to 
enhance biodiversity through the creation and restoration of habitats and, 
where possible, incorporating existing habitats. 

 
7. There will be a presumption against excessive engineering and 

culverting; natural treatments of floodplains and other water storage 
features will be preferred wherever possible; there will be a requirement to 
restore existing culverted or canalised water bodies where this is possible; 
and the inclusion of SUDS. Natural buffer strips will be created for the 
protection and enhancement of water bodies, including lochs, ponds, 
wetlands, rivers, tributaries, estuaries and the sea. Supplementary 
Guidance will be developed on buffer strips. 

 
Policy NE9 (Access and Informal Recreation) 
Wherever appropriate, developments should include new or improved provision 
for public access, permeability and/or links to green space for recreation and 
active travel. 
 
Policy R2 (Degraded and Contaminated Land) 
The City Council will require that all land that is degraded or contaminated, 
including visually, is either restored, reclaimed or remediated to a level suitable 
for its proposed use. This may involve undertaking site investigations and risk 
assessments to identify any actual or possible significant risk to public health or 
safety, or to the environment, including possible pollution of the water 
environment, that could arise from the proposals. Where there is potential for 
pollution of the water environment the City Council will liaise with SEPA. 
 

Page 124



Policy R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Development 
Housing developments should have sufficient space for the storage of residual, 
recyclable and compostable wasters. Flatted developments will require 
communal facilities that allow for the separate storage and collection of these 
materials. Details of storage facilities and means of collection must be included 
as part of any planning application for development which would generate waste. 
Further details are set out in Supplementary Guidance on Waste Management. 
 
Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings) 
States that all new buildings, in order to meet with building regulations energy 
requirements, must install low and zero-carbon generating technology to reduce 
the predicted carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below 2007 building 
standards. 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
The following supplementary guidance (SG) documents are of relevance to 
assessment of this application: 
 

- Affordable Housing 
- Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual 
- Waste Management  
- Transport and Accessibility 
- Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
- Bats and Development 
- Royal Cornhill Hospital Design Brief 

 
Other Relevant Material Considerations 
The matters raised in representations and the views expressed by the Aberdeen 
City and Shire Design Review Panel represent material considerations in the 
assessment of this application, in so far as any matters raised relate to relevant 
planning considerations. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character or appearance of conservation areas 

 
Section 59 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to, in considering whether to grant 
planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its setting, 
have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or 
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

Page 125



 
Zoning & Opportunity Site designation  
The site is within an area zoned CF1: Existing Community Sites and Facilities, in 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP), reflective of the healthcare use in 
the locality, both past and present. NHS Grampian consider the site is surplus to 
their requirments, and it is identified as Opportunity Site OP94 in the ALDP. That 
designation identifies an opportunity for a mixed-use redevelopment 
incorporating residential, office/business and community uses, and states that a 
Planning Brief will be required. That brief is described later in this report. 
 
Whilst the OP94 designation indicates potential for a mixed use development, 
this proposal is entirely residential. A mix of uses is generally secures sustainable 
communities, served by local services and amenities. In this instance, the site is 
relatively well-sited in relation to shops and services, already catering for 
residents of the surrounding area. In particular, the retail parks along Berryden 
Road, which include a large food supermarket. Opportunity Site commentaries 
are not exhaustive, and are intended to briefly indicate the development potential 
of a site. Residential use is considered to be generally compatible with adjoining 
uses, which include residential to the north and retail uses to the west. The 
application site abuts the new Cornhill Hospital site, and it will be necessary to 
consider carefully how any residential development relates to those ongoing 
healthcare uses, in order to ensure that both the clinical sensitivities of the 
hospital’s services and the amenity afforded to prospective new residents are 
balanced appropriately.  
 
Development Brief 
The Royal Cornhill Hospital Development Brief was prepared in August 2010, 
with the purpose of providing ‘clear guidelines for the redevelopment of the OP94 
Cornhill Hospital site in the historical context …….. within a conservation area’. 
The Royal Cornhill Hospital Development Brief was subsequently updated and 
carried forward as Supplementary Guidance on adoption of the ALDP. 
 
The adopted Brief identifies potential for up to 364 homes, based on a density of 
70 dwellings per hectare, and acknowledges that the Council’s plans for road 
widening along the Berryden Corridor may reduce the developable area of the 
site. It is stated that potential developers will be required to specifically address 
an integrated landscape strategy for the site, which shall include a survey of 
existing trees and a report on their condition, along with proposals for a 
landscape management plan.  The key principles set out in the development brief 
are as follows; 
 

• Proposals must adopt the principles of ‘place making’, high quality building 
design, high quality urban design, high quality lanscape design and 
sustainability; 
 

• Overarching theme for redevelopment strategy should be to integrate the 
architecture of old and new into the park like setting of the site; 
 

Page 126



• Identifies a requirenment for a Conservation Audit to identify elements of 
retention and demolition of existing buildings within development 
proposals; 
 

• Materials should incorporate elements of granite for external walls, 
boundary walls and linking structures and other compatible materials 
appropriate to modern redevelopment within the historical context of the 
site and a conservation area. 

 
Rosemount and Westburn Conservation Area Appraisal 
In identifying the local context and assessing how the proposed development 
relates to that context, and to the character and appearance of the Rosemount 
and Westburn Conservation Area, it is appropriate to consider the Conservation 
Area Appraisal undertaken, which describes the character of the area around the 
Royal Cornhill Hospital as being typified by a collection of Victorian Asylum 
buildings of granite construction sitting proud in a parkland setting. It is 
acknowledged in the appraisal that a number of additional buildings have 
appeared over time, particularly with the construction of the ‘new’ Cornhill 
Hospital in 1989, but it is stated that the over-riding impression remains that of a 
parkland with open lawns and tree planting. 
 
The appraisal recognises that later additions have largely engulfed the original 
asylum building of the Royal Cornhill Hospital, however whilst the relationship of 
the pavilions, villas, wards and courtyards and the spaces between may have 
altered over time, with the introduction of car parking, the localised sense of 
enclosure still exists within the hospital complex. The Forbes of Newe Obelisk 
(1830) commemorates John Forbes, who bequeathed £10,000 towards building 
the hospital. The category‘C’ listed obelisk was originally sited in St Nicholas 
churchyard, but was relocated to the hospital grounds in 1838. 
 
This appraisal establishes that the designation of the Rosemount and Westburn 
Conservation Areas was proposed for two main reasons: 
 

1. preservation of street pattern and granite buildings that make an 
important, positive and lasting contribution to the City’s character and 
building stock; and 

 
2. preservation of the parkland setting of both Westburn and Victoria Parks, 

and the Cornhill Estate for the benefit of future generations. Designation of 
the Rosemount and Westburn Conservation area enables the protection of 
the whole area rather than simply individual buildings. Demolition can be 
prevented and changes controlled so that the distinct character of the area 
is preserved. 

 
Design merits & relationship to context 
Having established that the Cornhill site is typified by a collection of robust 
granite buildings and mature landscaping, that creates a series of protected and 
largely enclosed courtyard spaces, it is appropriate to consider how the proposed 
redevelopment of the site would relate to its existing setting and character.  

Page 127



 
There is limited provision for open space within the development, with green 
spaces generally confined to: the area set aside for the widening of Berryden 
Road (thus potentially not a long term provision); areas around the periphery of 
the site where development cannot be accommodated due to the presence of 
existing mature trees; and areas around the Obelisk and to the fore of the 
refurbished villa, which serve to maintain some sort of setting for those 
centrepieces.  
 
The applicants have intimated that granite taken from the demolition of existing 
buildings on-site would be utilised across the site, in the formation of new 
boundary walls, helping to embed the new development in its setting. Elevations 
of new buildings would be finished in dry dash render with new natural granite 
(not from downtakings) used on feature gables and other prominent locations. 
Basecourses, below such features, would also be finished in granite, with 
basecourses under drydash rendered walls to be formed in re-constituted / 
synthetic stonework. 
 
The eastern edge of the site presents an opportunity for an increase in scale and 
massing, which is reflected in the proposed development, however that increase 
in scale results in a higher intensity of development, which results in much of the 
external space / public realm being given over to car parking. It is considered that 
this site offers an opportunity to develop relatively high density housing by 
creating a series of courtyards, spaces and squares, however the houses 
proposed, beyond some cosmetic detailing, appear to be standardised house 
types, typical of those seen throughout the country, and do not demonstrate how 
the design solution relates to the Cornhill context. It is considered that the 
approach to the design of house and building types should demonstrate 
reference to and influence from the existing building stock, particularly the 
original ‘asylum’ elements. The current proposal does not seem to demonstrate 
how it has evolved as a result of analysis of that existing context. 
 
Suggestions relating to the arrangement of buildings and spaces in the north-
western corner of the site, adjacent to the terminus of Chestnut Row, which were 
made by the Design Review Panel (DRP) have been taken into account. This 
arrangement now better reflects the existing urban grain. Similarly, a more 
consistent frontage is now presented along Berryden Road, rather than the 
standalone blocks which had initially been proposed. This creates a more 
identifiable edge to the development  and a convenitional ‘street’ frontage to 
Berryden Road. Whilst these changes, suggested by the DRP, are welcomed, 
they are not considered to address other issues, highlighted in this report. The 
views of the DRP are not binding, and the DRP report, for the purposes of 
assessing this application, represents a material consideration. Whilst some 
weight can be attached to those comments, it is noted that they were provided in 
relation to an earlier iteration of the design proposal, and do not preclude the 
planning authority’s own assessment of the design merits of the proposal as it 
now stands.  
 

Page 128



The ‘C’ listed obelisk would be retained in its original location, set within an area 
of open space. It is considered that the setting of the obelisk is given due 
consideration, and would sit well within an area of landscaped open space, as a 
central focal point to the development. Any re-siting of this feature would require 
Listed Building Consent.  
 
Given much of the site would be covered by buildings, private gardens and car 
parking, and the proposal does not clearly reflect the character of existing 
buildings, this suggests that the proposal would not accord with the Cornhill 
Development Brief’s aspiration that any redevelopment integrates the 
architecture of old and new into the ‘park like setting of the site’, and utilises 
‘place making’ principles of: high quality building design; urban and landscape 
design. By failing to demonstrate due regard for its context and make a positive 
contribution to its setting, the proposal cannot be considered to accord with policy 
D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) of the ALDP.  
 
Policy D4 (Aberdeen’s Granite Heritage) of the ALDP sets out the Council’s 
desire to encourage the retention of granite buildings across the city, whether or 
not they are listed or lie within a Conservation Area. Conservation Area Consent 
is required for those demolition works due to the site’s location within the 
Rosemount & Westburn Conservation Area. As a result, the demolition does not 
in itself form part of this application for planning permission, however it is 
nevertheless relevant to consider that the redevelopment proposal does not 
involve the use of granite downtakings in the construction of new buildings. Policy 
D4 sets out a requirement for granite buildings demolished outwith conservation 
areas to utilise downtakings in the principal elevations of any replacement 
buildings, however no such stipulation is made in respect of buildings within 
conservation areas, on the basis that the policy also states that Conservation 
Area Consent will not be granted for the demolition of such buildings in the first 
place unless they make an insignificant contribution to the character of the 
conservation area. Clearly in this instance the Conservation Area Appraisal 
demonstrates that the existing granite buildings on the Cornhill site were central 
to its designation as a conservation area. It is thus reasonable to expect that, in 
considering a planning application where the demolition works themselves are 
not open for consideration, the same requirement for the use of granite 
downtakings would be extended to sites and buildings within Conservation Areas, 
if not being even more extensive. On balance, it is considered that the proposal 
fails to demonstrate accordance with policy D4 (Aberdeen’s Granite Heritage) of 
the ALDP. 
 
Policy D5 (Built Heritage) of the ALDP states that proposals affecting 
conservation areas of listed buildings will only be permitted if they comply with 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP).  
 
In this regard SPP itself, SHEP and the Managing Change in the Historic 
Environment guidance note series published by Historic Scotland should be 
taken into account when determining applications for listed building consent, 
conservation area consent or planning permission for development which may 
affect the historic environment. Planning authorities should support the best 

Page 129



viable use that is compatible with the fabric, setting and character of the historic 
environment. The aim should be to find a new economic use that is viable, over 
the long term with minimum impact on the special architectural and historic 
interest of the building or area. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character and appearance of conservation areas. In this case the development 
involves the removal of significant granite buildings of a particular character, and 
the new-build elements of the proposal do not appear to reflect that character. 
Much of the parkland setting of the Cornhill site would be eroded, with the 
addition of new buildings and car parking, and the design quality of the buildings 
proposed does not appear to preserve or enhance the character of the 
Rosemount & Westburn Conservation Area. As a result, it is concluded that the 
proposal does not accord with the Scottish Government’s aims for the historic 
environment, as set out in SPP and SHEP, or the advice from Historic Scotland, 
and therefore does not accord with policy D5 (Built Heritage) of the ALDP. 
 
The residential accommodation proposed across the site demonstrates a range 
of sizes and types of unit, with detached, semi-detached and terraced houses 
alongside flatted blocks. The proposal is therefore consistent with the aims of 
policy H4 (Housing Mix) of the ALDP. 
 
Density 
The density of development proposed, estimated at 54 units per hectare, falls 
slightly short of the 70 units per hectare envisaged by the Cornhill Development 
Brief, however that target seems particularly ambitious when considered in the 
context of both the ALDP’s much lower target of 30 units per hectare and the 
constraints posed by existing buildings and mature trees. Based on this simplistic 
assessment of density, the proposal is consistent with the minimum density 
stated in policy H3 (density). Beyond this, it is nevertheless necessary to 
consider whether the density of development proposed is appropriate to this 
particular site, having had regard for the site’s characteristics and the character 
of the surrouning area, all with the ultimate aim of creating an attractive 
residential environment with appropriate living conditions for residents and 
neighbours. 
 
What is apparent from the site layout is that much of the available space is 
occupied by buildings, car parking or private gardens. Whilst the density of the 
development may be acceptable in basic numbers, the composition of the 
development and the manner in which that density manifests itself appears less 
well-suited to the site and its characteristics. It is possible that a fundamentally 
different approach to car parking or a different balance of flats to houses may 
allow for the incorporation of a greater level of landscaping and open space 
within the development, to the benefit of a more contextual driven layout. It is 
therefore not clear that the density of this proposal demonstrates due 
consideration for the site’s characteristics, as sought by policy H3 (density).  
 
 

Page 130



Environment created for residents/neighbours 
The environment afforded to residents would be directly influenced by the layout 
and density of the proposal. The orientation and separation of buildings 
demonstrates that privacy of residents within the development has been diven 
due consideration, although largely reflecting generally accepted minimum 
standards. As noted earlier in this report, the ongoing presence of operational 
hospital buildings in close proximity to new development on the site of the Lower 
Hospital requires particular attention. The applicants’ response to this has been 
to arrange rows of terraces facing north and south, so that they are side-on to the 
western boundary. Internal accommodation has been arranged in order that no 
windows from habitable rooms would look out over that western boundary 
towards retained hospital uses. Car parking and associated landscaping is laid 
out along the southern boundary, ensuring that the southern faces of those 
terraced blocks are set some nearly 30m from the southern boundary wall, 
maintaining a sense of separation. 
 
The blocks arranged along Berryden Road (buildings 1 to 10) present a clear 
edge to the development and an identifiable street frontage thereto. Other 
buildings are arranged to face onto shared surface internal roads and associated 
car parking areas. 
 
The majority of houses have access to private gardens, however open space 
afforded to ‘back-to-back’ terraced houses and flatted blocks is limited. Flatted 
blocks arranged along Berryden Road face onto an area of open space, intended 
to be utilised in the Council’s road widening proposals, thus their future outlook is 
uncertain and could be quite significantly degraded, and landscaped open 
spaces immediately to the rear of these blocks are very modest relative to the 
scale of these 4 and 5 storey blocks. The ‘back-to-back’ terraced units to the 
south of the site are not afforded any rear garden, being limited to small front 
gardens of approximately 3.5m depth and generally orientated to face onto 
shared surface internal roads and car parking areas. These units are not 
therefore afforded a ‘private’ face as envisaged by policy D2, and there is no 
provision for private amenity space or garden.  
 
The consultation response received from Police Scotland’s Architectural Liaison 
Officer are relevant to assessment against policy D2 (Design and Amenity) of the 
ALDP, which requires new development to include measures to ‘design out’ 
crime and ‘design in’ safety. Initial concerns have been addressed to some 
extent, with pedestrian routes rationalised. Nevertheless, paths adjacent to rear 
gardens are identified as a potential cause for concern, demonstrating a lack of 
security through design. The ALO suggests that locked gates might be used to 
restrict access to lanes at the rear of properties. Whilst lane access can have 
benefits, it is noted also that the land running north to south through terraced 
blocks in the south-eastern corner of the site do not benefit from good levels of 
passive surveillance. Taking account of these points, it is considered that the 
proposal adequately designs out crime, as required by policy D2 (Design and 
Amenity) of the ALDP. The ALO has suggested that any approval might include a 
condition stipulating that the developer apply for a ‘Secured by Design’ award, 

Page 131



however this would be more suited to an informative, with the aim of bringing this 
matter to the developers’ attention.  
 
Open Space 
In assessing the existing open space provision around the site, it is necessary to 
consider not only the quantity of open space, but also the quality of those spaces 
and their accessibility. In this regard the location is well served by existing open 
space provision, with Westburn and Victoria Parks being within the ‘major’, 
‘neighbourhood’ and ‘local’ accessibility buffers set out in the Council’s Open 
Space supplementary guidance, and therefore there is no requirement for on-site 
provision of either major, neighbourhood or local open space facilities. Instead, 
the Council’s supplementary guidance advocates the enhancement of existing 
open spaces, to place emphasis on the quality of open spaces where there is 
sufficient quantity already in an area. On this the Developer Contributions Team 
advises of contributions in respect of such open space enhancements. Taking 
these matters into account, it is considered that the proposal demonstrates its 
accordance with the provisions of policy H4 (Open Space) of the ALDP and the 
associated ‘Open Space’ supplementary guidance, however it should be noted 
that the absence of requirement for on-site open space of a particular category / 
type does not override other requirements in relation to the relationship of a 
proposal to its landscape setting and the design and place-making benefits of 
incidental areas of open space and landscaping. 
 
Affordable Housing 
Policy H5 (Affordable Housing) requires that 25% of units are provided as 
affordable housing, preferably on-site, acknowledging that on-site delivery 
encourages mixed communities and helps promote social inclusion. 
Nevertheless, it is acknowledged that this may not always be possible and off-
site provision or commuted payments can be negotiated in some instances.  
 
25% equates to 75 units. The applicants have intimated a desire to provide 30 
units/10% of the total number of units on-site, with the remaining 15% met 
through financial contributions. Whilst it is acknowledged that there may be 
constraints on a particular site, that might result in exceptional infrastructure or 
site restoration costs, no case has been put forward for this failure to meet the 
requirements of policy H5, and therefore it can only be concluded that the 
proposal fails to demonstrate accordance with that policy.  
 
Access, Car Parking & Traffic 
Access is principally via a new access onto Berryden Road, involving the 
formation of a new signal-controlled junction. The specifications of that junction 
require careful consideration, to ensure that due regard is had for the Council’s 
proposals for the widening of Berryden Road. This envisaged road widening has 
progressed to a design stage, with a site footprint for the future works now 
identified. By ensuring that the development junction is designed with these 
improvement works in mind, abortive interventions can be avoided. Furthermore, 
it is necessary to ensure that the position of new buildings facing onto Berryden 
Road allows for appropriate visibility between junctions post-widening works.  
 

Page 132



The applicants have sought to justify the relationship between the proposed new 
signalised junction and the Council’s proposals for the widening of Berryden 
Road. In this regard building 5 sits within an area required to ensure adequate 
intervisibility between the access junction and the proposed line of the 
northbound carriageway of Berryden Road. Furthermore, the sub-optimal width of 
the junction entry is such that it could not accommodate larger vehicles, such as 
refuse vehicles and fire tenders, without those vehicles encroaching onto 
opposite lanes and the adjacent cycle halt area.  On this basis, it is considered 
that the proposed access junction arrangements do not dovetail satisfactorily with 
the Council’s proposals, and would result in significant problems when those 
widening works took place. Taking that into account, and noting the Roads 
Projects Team’s objection to the proposal, the fundamental issue of suitable site 
access has not been satisfactorily resolved to a point where the application could 
be supported, and is thus the development is considered contrary to the aims of 
Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development). 
 
There are also similar issues for large vehicles at the access from May Baird 
Avenue. Thus accessibility demonstrated for refuse vehicles is not currently 
considered to meet the necessary requirements.  
 
May Baird Avenue features pedestrian footways on both sides, from the Shaw 
Road junction northwards. South of the Shaw Road junction, there is a footway 
only on the western side of the road, and none whatsoever south of the 
Bennachie Building car park. May Baird Avenue is currently traffic calmed, 
featuring speed tables. The applicants currently intend to bring a small length of 
May Baird Avenue, between the northern access to the development and Shaw 
Road, up to adoptable standard, however the Council’s Roads Projects Team 
have intimated that the full length of the development frontage along May Baird 
Avenue should be of adoptable standard, including a pedestrian footway. It is 
highlighted that May Baird Avenue is currently sub-standard, with pinch points 
present along the narrow carriageway and little provision for safe pedestrian 
movement.  
 
Whilst the interior of the site has been designed with ‘Designing Streets’ in mind, 
the failure to make adequate provision for pedestrians by connecting 
appropriately to the wider pedestrian network is considered to be contrary to the 
provisions of policies D3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) and NE9 (Access and 
Informal Recreation), which require development to maintain and enhance 
permeability, prioritise pedestrian movement and include new or improved 
provision for public access, permeability and links to green space for recreation 
and active travel. 
 
Roads colleagues have intimated that the secondary access onto May Baird 
Avenue is sufficient to accommodate the general level of traffic generated by the 
development, with the obvious exception fo large vehicles.  
 
The submitted Transport Assessment identifies a series of local junctions within 
the ‘sphere of influence’ of the proposed development. The process for assessing 
impact on junctions involves identifying baseline traffic flows, applying an agreed 

Page 133



growth factor to reflect the intended year of opening for the development, and 
then adding traffic flows both from other committed developments in the area and 
from the traffic generated by the proposed development. Using this approach, it 
has been possible to identify impact on two junctions in particular, at Westburn 
Road/Berryden Road and Maberly Street/Rosemount Place. It is understood that 
hypothetical mitigation works could be costed for these junctions, with a financial 
contribution payable, to be utilised for improvements to the local network, 
although not necessarily to those junctions, due to the potential disruption 
involved and their obsolesence on implementation of the Council’s Berryden 
Corridor scheme. Such contributions in lieu of local network mitigation could be 
secured through a s75 agreement should members be minded to approve the 
application. 
 
The Council’s adopted ‘Transport and Accessibility’ supplementary guidance 
indicates a notional parking requirement of 575 spaces, based on the rates 
applicable in the ‘outer city zone’. A total of 531 spaces have been provided 
within the site, through communal parking spaces, garages and driveways. As a 
result there is a shortfall of 44 spaces from the guideline. The Council’s Roads 
Projects Team acknowledge this shortfall, but highlight that the site lies 
immediately outside the ‘inner city’ area, where rates for car parking are lower, to 
reflect the reduced distance to the city centre and the greater scope for 
sustainable modes of travel. On this basis, Roads colleagues have suggested 
that it will be acceptable for the applicant to provide a robust car parking 
management plan for communal parking areas, identifying measures which can 
be implemented to ensure efficient use of the level of available car parking 
proposed, to alleviate parking pressure on surrounding streets as a result of the 
identified shortfall. A management plan to this effect could reasonably be secured 
through the use of a condition attached to any consent. 
 
Earlier concerns regarding the location of car parking spaces accessible for 
disabled users have been addressed, however Roads colleagues have 
requested that a condition be attached to any consent to require that disabled 
spaces are appropriately demarcated and signposted. 
  
The applicants have recently provided further details relating to provision for the 
storage of cycles, which demonstrate the required number of spaces in 
appropriately convenient and secure locations. The delivery of this on-site 
provision can be secured via use of an appropriately worded condition. 
Appropriate provision has been made for motorcycle parking within the site.  
 
Impact on trees 
The submitted tree survey establishes that ‘the trees in the hospital grounds are 
mostliy in good, sound condition and have obviously received regular attention 
and management’. As a result, far fewer trees than is normally the case have 
been recommended for removal or for remedial work solely on the basis of their 
current condition. A total of 184 trees were identified in the survey, with 5 trees 
identified as category-U, meaning that they are not considered to be suitable for 
retention. Of the 179 trees surveyed as ‘appearing sound and healthy’, 25 are 
category-A, 51 category-B and 103 category-C.  

Page 134



 
A total of 101 trees are to be felled to allow the proposed development. Of those 
101 trees, 5 are category-A, 29 are category-B and 67 are category-C. No 
proposals have been made for replacement planting.  
 
The Council’s Environmental Planner, with a remit for arboricultural matters, has 
noted that the majority of trees proposed for removal are identified as being in 
sound health and have significant remaining life spans, and suggests that no 
sound justification has been provided for the level of tree removal proposed. The 
existing layout does not appear to have taken into consideration the potential to 
retain trees across the site, and a number of those trees to be retained are 
located too close to buildings, potentially giving rise to pressure for further tree 
losses in future years due to pressure from residents with conserns relating to 
health and safety matters or sunlight and daylight issues. It is recommended that 
any proposals for the redevelopment of the site places an emphasis on the 
retention of category A and B trees, and gives due consideration to the proximity 
of retained trees to new buildings and/or areas of hard surfacing. Replacement 
tree planting, at a minimum rate of 2 new specimens for every tree to be 
removed, is recommended. The applicants have made no specific proposal for 
replacement planting across the site, but have recently stated in writing that they 
would be willing to make provision for replacement planting. The extent to which 
that is possible will be influenced by and potentially limited by the proposed 
development and its layout, and it is also unclear to what extent any replacement 
planting could compensate for the erosion of local landscape character which 
arises from extensive tree losses. Taking these matters into account, it is 
considered that the proposal would result in the loss of established trees which 
contribute significantly to landscape character and local amenity, and therefore is 
contrary to the aims of policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the ALDP. The 
resultant impact on landscape character, which provides a distinct sense of place 
within the Cornhill grounds, is also considered to be contrary to the provisions of 
policy D6 (Landscape) and detrimental to the character of the Rosemount & 
Westburn Conservation Area. 
 
Potential for impact on bats 
As this proposed redevelopment of the Royal Cornhill Hospital site is based on 
the demolition of a series of existing buildings, the planning authority is obliged to 
have regard to the potential for impact on bats, a European Protected Species 
(EPS). The stone and slate buildings present are of a type identified in the 
Council’s supplementary guidance on ‘Bats and Development’ as having good 
potential for roosting bats. The type of buildings to be demolished and the extent 
of that demolition, together with the presence of good habitat types in the 
surrounding area, is sufficient to suggest that a bat survey would be warranted to 
establish whether there are bats or bat roosts present in these buildings. Bat 
surveys must be provided prior to detemination of any planning application, and it 
is not acceptable for a requirement for a bat survey to be secured via a condition. 
This is set out in a letter to Heads of Planning from Scotland’s Chief Planner, 
where it is made clear that planning authorities should fully ascertain whether 
protected species are on site and what the implications of this might be before 
considering whether to approve an application or not.  

Page 135



 
The planning authority’s policy position in relation to EPS is set out in policy NE8 
(Natural Heritage), which requires that applicants submit supporting evidence for 
any development that may have an adverse effect on a protected species. 
 
Taking these points into consideration, and in the absence of such a survey, the 
proposal would be conrary to policy NE8 (Natural Heritage) and it is possible only 
to refuse planning permission or, in the event that members are minded to 
approve the application, to defer determination until such time as a bat survey 
can be carried out and its results incorporated into a further report to the Planning 
Development Management committee. 
 
Potential contamination 
The recommendations of the Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Study, investigating 
the site for potential contamination, have been agreed by the relevant officers in 
Environmental Health. It has been recommended that appropriate contaminated 
land conditions be attached to any approval, requiring that a Phase II 
investigation be carried out prior to demolition and (if found to be necessary) 
supplementary investigations to be carried out after demolition. Such further 
investigation can ensure that any necessary restoration or remediation works can 
be identified and secured in order to ensure that the site is fit for residential use, 
as required by policy R2 (Degraded and Contaminated Land) 
 
Waste storage & disposal 
The Council’s waste strategy officer has identified a number of concerns relating 
to the proposed development, the most fundamental of which is the layout and its 
unsuitability for waste and recycling collection. A significant proportion of houses 
would not be sufficiently accessible to collection vehicles, and so householders 
would be required to present their bins for collection at alternative, suitably 
accessible points. On this basis, potential conflict with policy R6 (Waste 
Management Requirements for New Development) has been identified. Whilst a 
condition can secure appropriate storage provision for refuse and recycling bins, 
the proposed layout and resultant accessibility concerns cannot be addressed in 
the same manner. The proposal must therefore be considered contrary to policy 
R6 in its current form. 
 
Drainage  
A Drainage Impact Assessment (DIA) has been submitted.  
SEPA initially expressed some concern over the single level of treatment for 
surface water at certain points within the site, however revisions to the drainage 
proposals have demonstrated the necessary 2 levels of treatment satisfactorily. 
An updated formal response from SEPA, removing their previous objection to the 
proposal, has not yet been received at the time of writing, however sufficient 
comfort is in place following discussion with SEPA to consider it reasonable to 
condition any consent to ensure that surface water drainage proposals would 
need to be approved in writing by the planning authority, in consultation with 
SEPA and the Council’s Flood Prevention team. 
 

Page 136



The submitted DIA states that a method statement, detailing how surface water 
will be dealt with during the construction phase, will be prepared by the appointed 
contractor, for approval prior to commencement of works on site. A series of 
measures to potentially be incorporated into that surface water management 
strategy are set out in the DIA. SEPA’s consultation response requests the a 
condition be attached to any consent, requiring the submission of a  site-specific 
construction environmental management plan (CEMP). That CEMP should 
incorporate detailed pollution prevention and mitigation measures for all 
construction elements potentially capable of giving rise to pollution during all 
phases of construction.  
 
Provided the necessary CEMP and SUDS measures can be agreed in writing 
with the planning authority, following consultation with the relevant stakeholders, 
accordance with policy NE6 (Flooding and Drainage) of the ALDP can be 
ensured. 

 
Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
No details of the manner in which the proposed new buildings would demonstrate 
accordance with the Council’s policy and guidance on reducing carbon emissions 
have been provided, however such submissions can be secured via an 
appropriately worded condition should members resolve to grant planning 
permission. This approach can ensure compliance with policy R7 (Low and Zero 
Carbon Buildings) and the associated supplementary guidance. 
 
Matters raised in representations 
The matters raised in representations are addressed in the following sections of 
this report; 
 

1. As noted above, the matter of whether the existing granite buildings 
present on site are retained or not is controlled by virtue of the site’s 
location within a conservation area, and will be assessed via the current 
application for Conservation Area Consent, ref P130382, as discussed in 
the ‘Design’ section of this report. 

2. The density of the development is addressed in the ‘density’ section of this 
report. 

3. & 4. Matters relating to the impact of the proposed development on the 
local roads network and its provision for residents’ car parking are 
addressed in the ‘Access, Car Parking and Traffic’ section of this report. 

5. Necessary improvements to the local road network have been identified in 
discussions with the Council’s Roads Projects Team, and are discussed in 
the ‘Access, Car Parking and Traffic’ section of this report. 

6. The potential for impact on protected species is addressed in the ‘Potential 
for impact on bats’ section above. 

7. Loss of existing trees is extensive, and is discussed in the ‘Impact on 
Trees’ section of this report. 

8. Safety concerns regarding new pedestrian routes are noted, however 
appropriately lit routes, which benefit from passive surveillance and 
encourage pedestrian permeability and sustainable travel are to be 
encouraged. 

Page 137



9. Privacy concerns are noted, however it is considered that orientation and 
separation distances between buildings are sufficient to ensure 
appropriate levels of privacy. It is noted that the proposed removal of trees 
to the north of the site, adjacent to the Bennachie Building and the 
terminus of Chestnut Row would result in a more open aspect, however 
properties on the southern side of Chestnut Row nevertheless lie nearly 
30m from the rear of those on Barkmill Road, which is considered 
sufficient to ensure appropriate levels of privacy.  

10. & 11. Existing cycle facilities in the area are discussed extensively in the 
submitted Transport Assessment, and the shared surface internal routes 
through the development can allow for east-west travel for cyclists from 
May Baird Avenue to Berryden Road. 

12. Issues relating to increased vehicular traffic on May Baird Avenue are 
discussed in detail in the ‘Access, Car Parking and Traffic’ section above. 

13. The consultation undertaken by the applicants met the requirements of the 
agreed Proposal of Application Notice (PoAN). 

14. Schools capacity has been investigated through consultation with the 
Developer Contributions Team. This has established that Skene Square 
Primary School is projected to exceed capacity, and therefore the 
applicants are required to make financial contributions at a rate 
commensurate to the scale of development and as specified in the 
Council’s Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual. Aberdeen 
Grammar School, the zoned secondary school, has capacity to 
accommodate the proposed development, therefore no contributions are 
required towards secondary schooling provision. 

15. Existing parking problems at the Cornhill Hospital site are noted, however 
the car parking areas within the application site relate to the vacant 
buildings, and no car parking relating to the ‘new’ Cornhill Hospital site is 
to be removed. It is accepted that over time overspill car parking will have 
utilised the old Cornhill site as and when spaces were not available, 
however it does not follow that redevelopment of the site should be 
precluded by the percieved shortcomings of car parking provision 
available at the new hospital site. 

 
Matters raised by local Community Council 
The matters raised by the local Rosemount & Mile-End Community Council are 
discussed in detail in the ‘Density’, ‘Access, Car Parking and Traffic’ sections of 
this report. 
 
Conclusion 
The proposal does not demonstrate the high-quality, conservation led 
development of the Cornhill site that was envisaged by the Cornhill Development 
Brief. The proposal fails to adequately reflect the character and setting of the 
Cornhill site, and would result in the erosion of its landscape character through 
the removal of a substantial number of trees, many of which are of good quality 
and contribute significantly to local amenity. There would be a resultant adverse 
impact on the character of the Rosemount and Westburn Conservation Area. It 
has not been established that the development proposal would be accompanied 
by the necessary provision for vehicular and pedestrian access and associated 

Page 138



connections with the wider network. The absence of a bat survey is notable, as 
planning permission should not be granted until the presence of bats has been 
established through an appropriate survey – this cannot be the subject of a 
condition. In summary, the proposal is not considered to accord with the relevant 
provisions of the Development Plan, and no material considerations have been 
identified that would warrant determination other than in accordance with that 
Development Plan.  It is therefore recommended that the planning permission be 
refused for the reasons listed below. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. The proposed development, by eroding the parkland setting of the Cornhill site 
and utilising a largely standardised approach to housing design, is not considered 
to demonstrate due regard for its context or make a positive contribution to its 
setting, as required by policy D1 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. The 
dominance of car parking and limited provision of landscaped open space 
demonstrates a failure to accord with the 'place-making' aspirations of the 
Cornhill Development Brief. 
 
2. In failing to embrace the opportunities the site presents for the conversion of 
existing granite buildings and proposing a redevelopment which would not 
adequately reflect the character and architectural interest of the Cornhill estate, 
the proposal would result in the erosion of the character and appearance of the 
Rosemount and Westburn Conservation Area, and would be contrary to the aims 
of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP), Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) 
and policies D4 (Aberdeen's Granite Heritage) and D5 (Built Heritage) of the 
ALDP. 
 
3. Extensive tree removal across the site, affecting high quality, mature 
specimens, would detract from the landscape character of the site and the 
'parkland setting' which was identified as a reason for the designation of the 
Rosemount & Westburn Conservation Area, and would not reflect the high-quality 
landscape design envisaged by the Cornhill Development Brief. This adverse 
impact on the landscape character of the site would be contrary to policy D6 
(Landscape) of the ALDP. 
 
4. A failure to demonstrate that the development and its associated principal 
access via Berryden Road have been designed to an appropriate specification to 
fully integrate with the Council's designed proposals for the widening of Berryden 
Road, potentially leading to sub-standard visibility at the main access junction, 
indicates that site access arrangements are currently inadequate, contrary to the 
aims of policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the ALDP. 
 
5. The absence of a survey to establish the presence of bats and, if bats are 
found to be present, to propose appropriate mitigation measures, represents a 

Page 139



failure to demonstrate accordance with policy NE8 (Natural Heritage) of the 
ALDP, and is contrary to advice issued by Scotland's Chief Planner on planning 
authorities' obligations as regards European Protected Species (EPS). 
 
6. The proposal, by failing to make adequate provision for pedestrians footways 
along May Baird Avenue, connecting to the wider network of pedestrian routes 
and nearby recreational green spaces, fails to enhance permeability, promote 
pedestrian movement and facilitate sustainable travel, and is therefore contrary 
to policies D3 (Sustainable and Active Travel) and NE9 (Access and Informal 
Recreation) of the ALDP. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

FRIENDVILLE, GREAT WESTERN ROAD, 
ABERDEEN 
 
CHANGE OF USE TO EVENTS/ FUNCTION 
FACILITY WITH ASSOCIATED GUEST 
ACCOMMODATION  
 
For: Oakhill Apartments Ltd 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P140359 
Application Date:       14/03/2014 
Officer :                     Gavin Clark 
Ward : Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee (I Yuill/A 
Taylor/G Townson) 

Advert  : Section 60/65 - Dev aff 
LB/CA 
Advertised on: 09/04/2014 
Committee Date: 19 June 2014 
Community Council : No response 
received 
 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.5

Page 155



DESCRIPTION 
 
The site is located on the north side of Great Western Road, immediately to the 
west of the junction with Thorngrove Avenue. It comprises are substantial 
detached granite property set within large grounds extending to approximately 
5150sqm. The property contains two residential units with the dwellings located 
adjacent to Thorngrove Avenue, in the corner of the site. The buildings are 
Category “B” listed building and are located within the Great Western Road 
Conservation Area. Friendville was built in 1773; the walled gardens are listed 
separately, and are also Category “B” listed. Access to the properties is taken 
from Thorngrove Avenue.  

The gardens at Friendville are of historic importance in themselves as well as 
affecting the setting of a listed building. Friendville plays a significant role in the 
development of the Great Western Road Conservation Area.  

 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
An application for listed building consent (Ref: 140362) was withdrawn on the 
20th May 2014 for the formation of a gate and additional parking within the 
curtilage of the property. 
 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The proposal seeks detailed planning permission for the change of use of the two 
dwellinghouses within the curtilage of the property to form an events function 
facility with associated guest accommodation. Following the submission of 
amended plans, no alterations to the dwellings are proposed internally or 
externally. The applicant proposes to access the site from the existing residential 
access on Thorngrove Avenue, with 11 no. car parking spaces to be provided on 
the existing hard standing on the north-east corner of the site.  
 
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140359 
 
 On accepting the disclaimers enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because there have been 16 letters of representation. Accordingly, 
the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – have advised that the car parking layout is not a layout 
which can be supported. The stacked layout offers very a very poor level of 
accessibility; in order for the objection to be removed this would have to be 
amended. 
 
A minimum aisle width of 6m is required for vehicles reversing out of spaces; this 
has not been supplied in the proposed layout for the majority of the spaces. The 
applicant was also required to submit proof that a visibility splay of 2.4m x 25m 
from the access point could be provided.  
 
The surrounding local road network to the site is not one that can accommodate 
overspill car parking; therefore it would be necessary to know the use of each 
property. Function facilities require 1 car parking space per 27 sqm.  
 
Due to there still being issued that were raised and have still not been resolved 
since their initial observations, the Roads Projects Team object to the planning 
application.  
 
Environmental Health – should planning permission be approved, the applicant 
would be required to submit a Noise Assessment to ensure the proposed impact 
on neighbouring amenity would be minimised.  
 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – no observations 
 
Community Council – no response received  
 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
16 letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters – 
 

1. Concerns about the proposed change of use, and the resultant impact on 
the surrounding area; 
 

2. Concerns in relation to an increase in noise levels, and the resultant 
impact on the surrounding residential area; 

 

Page 157



3. Concerns in relation to an increase in traffic levels, both within the site, 
and on the surrounding road network and the number of parking spaces 
provided within the application site; 

 
4. Concerns in relation to the neighbour notification process/ advertising of 

the proposal; 
 

5. Concerns about the impact of the development on the Category “B” Listed 
Building 
 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance  
 
Historic Scotland’s Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP): states that the 
planning authority must pay special attention to the desirability of preserving the 
building, or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest 
which it possesses. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development: states that new 
development will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken 
to minimise the traffic generated. 
 
Policy D5: Built Heritage: states that proposals affecting Conservation Areas or 
Listed Buildings will only be supported if they accord with Scottish Planning 
Policy. 
 
Policy H1: Residential Areas: states that, within existing residential areas, 
proposals for non-residential uses will be refused unless they are considered 
complementary to residential use; or it can be demonstrated that the use would 
cause no conflict with, or any nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing residential 
amenity.  
 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition, 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 
 

Page 158



Principle of Development 
 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the ALDP advises that applications will be 
refused unless they are considered complementary to residential use; or it can be 
demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or nuisance to the 
enjoyment of existing residential amenity. The proposal would see a change of 
use of the property, and a significant increase in usage, with a number of visitors 
during the day and at night increasing considerably. 
 
The proposed use would have an adverse impact on the character of the 
surrounding area, which is predominantly residential in nature, with the 
intensification in use likely to change the residential nature of the area. This 
would be due to an increase in noise disturbance from the function facility, an 
increase in people visiting the area and an unacceptable increase in vehicle 
movements both within the site, and in the surrounding area, The applicant has 
failed to demonstrate that the proposal would have a negligible impact on the 
character of the surrounding area.  
 
In addition, the Council’s Roads Projects Team, have objected to the application, 
with a reason being the potential impact for overspill parking on the surrounding 
road network. For the reasoning discussed above, and later in this evaluation, the 
proposal fails to accord with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan.  
 
Design, Scale and Form of Development/ Impact on Historic Environment 
 
Following the submission of amended plans, the application proposed no 
external alterations to the listed building. Previously, the applicant proposed to 
partially demolish an external wall and create additional car parking facilities. In 
addition, no external alterations are proposed to the listed building, following the 
submission of amended plans, the proposed use does not offend either Scottish 
Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) or Policy D5 (Built Heritage) of the ALDP. 
 
Traffic impacts, access arrangements and car parking 
 
In relation to access arrangements, the proposal seeks to use the existing 
residential access on Thorngrove Avenue. No alterations have been proposed, 
and plans showing the required visibility splay of 2.4m x 25m have not been 
provided and it is the view of roads officers that the existing access is insufficient 
for the proposed use.   
 
Council parking standards for function facilities require 1 car parking space per 
27 square metres of floor space. The parking layout submitted is insufficient, with 
11 no. car parking spaces proposed. A number of the spaces shown on drawing 
no. 06a are considered insufficient (spaces 1, 5-7 in terms of stacking and 9-11 in 
terms of insufficient reversing space). Stacking of car parking spaces is not 
permitted by Aberdeen City Council Parking Standards, and a minimum aisle 
width of 6m is required for vehicles reversing out of spaces. Due to the limited 
area of parking  within existing defined parking area, adequate parking could not 

Page 159



be provided within the site. The Roads Projects Team have therefore objected to 
the application in this regard. 
 
The proposal previously sought to demolish an existing listed wall and form 
additional parking spaces within an existing paved area. This amendment was 
discussed with Historic Scotland, and was discouraged. The rest of the site forms 
landscaped grounds, and the Council would be unwilling to allow any other areas 
within the curtilage of the dwellinghouse to be taken over by car parking facilities 
as any additional parking area would have an adverse effect on the setting of the 
listed building, and surrounding conservation area. 
 
The applicants had informed the Council that some parties would be dropped off 
by coach; however no details have been submitted about where and how this 
would take place. In addition no details have been submitted above how the 
premises would be serviced, this would be conditioned should planning 
permission be approved. Coach parking is not an issued which can be resolved, 
as it could not be accommodated within the site, on Thorngrove Avenue, or on 
Great Western Road.  
 
The site has good public transportation links, with the number 19 (Culter – 
Tillydrone) bus stopping on Great Western Road, approximately 100m (towards 
Tillydrone) and approximately 20m (to Culter) from the application site boundary. 
 
The provision of cycle parking facilities could also be conditioned, and provided 
within the curtilage of the property.  
 
The surrounding road network to the site is not one that could accommodate 
overspill car parking, an issue which has been highlighted in a number of the 
letters of representation. For the reasons mentioned above, the proposal does 
not accord with Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
Relevant planning matters raised in letters of representation 
 

1. The proposed impact of the change of use on the surrounding area has 
been assessed elsewhere within this report. 
 

2. Should planning permission be approved, Environmental Health has 
requested the inclusion of a condition in relation to the submission of a 
Noise Assessment. This would include surveys of please going to/ from 
the site, to assess the impact on neighbouring amenity.  
 

3. A number of issues in relation to transportation, including car parking, 
impact on the surrounding road network, public transportation links and 
cycle parking have been discussed elsewhere in this report.  
 

4. The correct neighbour notification measures, including advertisement of 
the application were undertaken, as well as re-notification following an 
amendment to the description of the proposal.  

Page 160



 
5. After amendments, no external alterations are proposed, and the 

proposed use would have a negligible impact on the character and 
appearance of the listed building/ conservation area. 

 
Conclusion 
 
In this instance there are no material planning considerations which would 
warrant approval of planning permission. Should Councillors be minded to 
approve the application, appropriate conditions would be required in relation to 
parking, servicing, cycle parking and the submission of a noise assessment.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. The proposal fails to comply with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan in that the proposed use would have 
an unacceptable impact on the enjoyment of existing residential amenity 
as the proposed use would result in an increase in noise disturbance, an 
unacceptable increase in the number of people accessing the premises 
and a significant increase in vehicular movements both within the site, and 
in the surrounding area. 
 

2. The proposal fails to accord with Policy T2 (Managing the Transport 
Impact of Development) and its associated Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (Transport and Accessibility) in that insufficient levels of car 
parking would be provided within the existing car parking area, and the 
proposal would have an unacceptable impact on Thorngrove Avenue and 
the surrounding road network, including the potential for overspill parking.  

 
 
 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
 
 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

21 UNION STREET, ABERDEEN 
 
CHANGE OF USE FROM CLASS 1 RETAIL TO 
HOT FOOD TAKE-AWAY (SUI GENERIS) AND 
INSTALLATION OF FLUE    
 
For: Mr Cemal Kuccuk 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P140273 
Application Date:       07/03/2014 
Officer :                     Gavin Clark 
Ward : George Street/Harbour (A May/J 
Morrison/N Morrison) 

Advert  : Section 34 -Proj. Pub. 
Concern 
Advertised on: 19/03/2014 
Committee Date: 19 June 2014 
Community Council : No response 
received 
 

 

 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.6

Page 177



DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site is a vacant class 1 (Shop) unit formerly occupied by 
footlocker. The site is located on the eastern end of Union Street, opposite the 
Town House and situated on the ground floor of a five storey terrace.  The 
building was designed by the renowned architect Archibald Simpson and 
constructed over time to create the ‘Union Buildings’. Formally Category ‘A’ 
listed, the building was re-classified by Historic Scotland in 2007 to Category ‘B’. 
The site is also located within the Union Street Conservation Area. 
 
The unit is located on the western corner of the building, adjoining a class 1 
newsagent to the east.  The west elevation faces a pedestrian link, which 
separates Union Street and Exchequer Row. The upper floors of the building are 
currently being converted into serviced apartments. On the ground floor there are 
two vacant public houses, “The Athenaeum” facing onto Union Street and the 
“Henry’s Bar” facing Exchequer Row. The basement is currently unoccupied, but 
is licenced as an entertainment venue / nightclub formerly known as “Snafu”. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
There is no relevant application history, relating to the unit, however, an 
application seeking planning permission (Ref: 130946) for the change of use/ 
conversion of the first to fourth floors of the Union Buildings to form 40 serviced 
apartments, including the replacement of windows and associated dormer 
windows and rooflights was approved by the Planning Development 
Management Committee on the 26th September 2013. A further application (Ref: 
131611) which sought permission for a further five serviced apartments, was 
thereafter approved by the Planning Development Management Committee on 
the 14th January 2014. 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
The application seeks planning permission to allow for a change of use from a 
shop, which falls within Class 1 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes 
Order) 1997, to a hot-food takeaway, which is considered a sui-generis use not 
falling within any class within the same order. The proposal also includes the 
reopening of an exiting boarded up window on the western ground floor 
elevation, to allow for the installation of a ventilation flue outlet. No other external 
alterations are proposed to the property.  
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=140273 
 
 
 

Page 178



On accepting the disclaimers enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 

• Supporting Statement (dated 31st March 2014) 
 
 

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee as 17 timeous letters of representation have been received. 
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – no objection in terms of parking provision, however, 
they have requested the submission of details in relation to cycle storage and 
insertion of an advisory note to ensure that proper access arrangements for 
disabled and mobility impaired people are provided. The applicants would also be 
required to identify how refuse and delivery vehicles access / egress 
arrangements would be undertaken. 
 
Environmental Health – confirm that the proposed flue / extract system appears 
to be adequate for the proposed operation. But require additional information in 
relation to the menu items eg: what types of food are proposed. These matters 
are discussed in greater detail in the evaluation section of this report. 
 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – no observations   
 
Community Council – no response received.  
 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
17 letters of representation have been received. The objections raised relate to 
the following matters – 
 

1. The proposal does not comply with Local Plan policy; specifically Policy 
C2: City Centre Business Zone and Union Street and the associated 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Union Street Frontages; 
 

2. The level of Class 1 retail uses would be reduced to less than the 65% 
minimum level of retail required in Sector H (Market Street to Exchequer 
Row) as prescribed in the Local Development Plan and Supplementary 
Guidance; 

 
3. Adverse impact of the development in terms of odours and noise on 

residential amenity; Further evidence should be submitted regarding the 
effectiveness of the flue system and the means of collection of waste 

Page 179



generated by the proposed use; and the proposal would lead to an 
increase in litter rubbish, and would have an adverse effect on the 
character and appearance of the surrounding area; 

 
4. Potential parking issues which may be caused by home deliveries or 

collection of take-away orders 
 

5. The hot-food take-away is not compatible for the eastern end of Union 
Street, such uses are more appropriate towards the western end of the 
street; and 

 
6. Concerns raised in relation to potential anti-social behaviour associated 

with the proposed use. 
 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 
Scottish Planning Policy: states that Town Centres should be the focus for a mix 
of uses including retail, leisure, entertainment, recreation, cultural and community 
facilities as well as homes and businesses. SPP also outlines that any change to 
a listed building should be managed to protect its special interest while enabling it 
to remain in active use. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy C2: City Centre Business Zone and Union Street: states that proposals for 
a change of use from retail (Class 1 of the Use Class Order) to other uses in the 
City Centre Business Zone will only be acceptable if The proposal is in Union 
Street it must accord with the Union Street Frontages Supplementary Planning 
Guidance; and 
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking: aims to ensure that high standards of 
design are achieved through a number of considerations, including context, to 
ensure that the setting of the proposed development and its design is acceptable. 
 
Policy D5: Built Heritage: states that proposals affecting Listed Buildings or 
Conservation Areas will only be permitted if they comply with Scottish Planning 
Policy.  
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development: new developments 
will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been undertaken to 
minimise the traffic generated. Maximum car parking standards are set out in the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Transport and Accessibility. 
 
Policy R6: Waste Requirements for New Developments: there should be 
sufficient space for the storage of residual, recyclable and compostable waste. 

Page 180



The proposal should accord with Supplementary Guidance on Waste 
Management.  
 
Supplementary Guidance 
 

• Transport and Accessibility 

• Waste Management Requirements in New Development 

• Union Street Frontages 

• Harmony of Uses 
 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 
Principle of Development/ Union Street Frontages Supplementary Planning 
Guidance 
 
Policy C2 (City Centre Business Zones and Union Street) advises that proposals 
for a change of use from retail to other uses, within the city centre, will only be 
acceptable, if amongst other things, they accord with the Union Street Frontages 
Supplementary Planning Guidance.  
 
Union Street Frontages policy has existed since 1977, with the aim of maintaining 
an appropriate mix and location of shopping, service and commercial leisure 
functions on Union Street. It does this by applying minimum percentages of 
ground floor retail frontage that are required in individual sections of Union Street. 
 
Proposals for a change of use away from retail (Class 1) to non-retail uses such 
as cafes, restaurants, hotels, leisure and financial and professional services are 
measured against these minimum percentages, as well as other relevant criteria. 
Proposals which would be considered to enhance the vitality and viability of 
Union Street, as a key retail location within the city centre, will be supported. 
 
The percentage required to be maintained for each sector varies, depending on 
the relative desirability of maintaining retail use in that sector or alternatively 
encouraging a diversity of uses. 
 
The application site is within Sector H (Market Street to Exchequer Row; 3-67 
Union Street). The current level of retail frontage required at ground floor level in 

Page 181



this sector is 65% and at present the actual ground floor retail frontage is slightly 
above this. Whilst there is limited flexibility of up to 1% below the minimum 
required level, should planning permission be approved, Sector H would see a 
reduction to 61% Class 1 use; and as a result the proposal fails to accord with 
the above guidance. There are examples in recent years where applications have 
been approved contrary to the Union Street Frontages SPG, including the 
application for HSBC at 95-99 Union Street (Ref: 110114). However, applications 
such have this have provided significant improvements to the building (such as 
reuse of a long term vacant upper floors and stone cleaning of the building). It is 
not considered that sufficient mitigating material circumstances, such as 
alterations / improvements to the current building could be provided, or justify 
departing from policy to allow approval of planning permission, contrary to the 
provisions of the development plan.  
 
As such it is considered that the proposal fails to accord with Policy C2 (City 
Centre Business Zones and Union Street) in that the proposal does not comply 
with the Union Street Frontages Supplementary Planning Guidance.  
 
Harmony of Uses – Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
Proposals for hot-food takeaways require to be given careful consideration as 
they raise sensitive amenity issues for neighbouring properties and land uses. 
The guidance advises that, on Union Street, hot food shops at ground floor level 
will require to comply with Union Street Frontages Guidelines and Policy C2 (City 
Centre Business Zone and Union Street), before a number of criteria are applied. 
As mentioned in the paragraphs above, the proposal does not accord with either 
issue, therefore the principle of a change of use could not be supported and the 
proposal therefore fails to accord with the Harmony of Uses Supplementary 
Planning Guidance.  
 
Response to Supporting Statement 
 
The applicants submitted a supporting statement, which advised that the 
premises have lain vacant since April 2013 and have been marketed for retail 
use since this time. The statement also provides a background to the site, 
analysis of planning policy, discussion of amenity issues and a conclusion. 
 
The supporting statement has been assessed in detail, and whilst the applicant 
have tried to justify that the proposal accords with the development plan, and the 
proposal has been marketed for a period of more than one year, this does not 
outweigh the proposals failure to accord with the terms of the ALDP, as the 
proposal fails to accord with the Union Street Frontages SPG, as discussed 
earlier in this report.   
 
Traffic impacts, access arrangements and car parking 
 
The Council’s Roads Projects Team has made a number of comments in relation 
to the application. They have confirmed that they are generally content with the 
application, and should planning permission be approved, conditions in relation to 

Page 182



cycle storage and disability access could be attached. The applicants have 
indicated space for refuse storage and an additional condition could be applied to 
ensure this is clarified/ provided. The proposal does not offend the objectives of 
Policy T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) or the associated 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (Transport and Accessibility).  
 
Environmental Health Issues/ Installation of Ventilation System 
 
The proposal has been assessed by colleagues in Environmental Health, who 
advise that the proposed ventilation system appears adequate for the proposed 
take-away use. An appropriate condition in relation to waste pick up/ refuse 
storage would be inserted to ensure compliance with Policy R6 (Waste 
Requirements for New Developments) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  
 
The proposal includes the installation of insulation panels, and a ventilation 
system which would be lagged, with high performance acoustic insulation. The 
system would also include pre-carb filters, two carbon filers and a motor. The 
point of discharge would be via an existing opening (currently a boarded window) 
on the western elevation, adjacent to the Tourist Information Centre. The system 
has been assessed by colleagues in Environmental Health, who have advised of 
a general acceptability of the scheme.  
 
Environmental Health have requested additional information in relation to 
proposed menu items, this information has not been submitted, and were 
councillors be mined to grant permission, this information should be provided 
prior to granting planning permission, to ensure that adequate systems are in 
place prior to occupation of the premises, such information would require to be 
subject to consultation with Environmental Health. 
 
In terms of the proposed flue, this would be sited in place of an existing boarded 
window. Were councillors minded to approve the application further consideration 
would have to be given to these elements of the proposal on receipt of more 
detailed plans, which would allow the impact on the Listed Building and 
Conservation Area in greater detail, this element of the proposal would also 
require an application for listed building consent. These details are not 
considered to be pertinent at this time due to the recommendation of refusal.  
 
Issues raised in letters of representation 
 

1. For the reasons mentioned earlier in the evaluation section of this report, 
the proposal is not considered to comply with local planning policy; 
specifically Policy C2: City Centre Business Zone and Union Street and 
the associated Supplementary Planning Guidance on Union Street 
Frontages; 
 

2. The proposal fails to accord with the Union Street Frontages 
Supplementary Planning Guidance, in that the proposal, if approved, 
would result in 61% retail use within Sector H, below the minimum 65% 
threshold; 

Page 183



 
3. Environmental Health has been consulted on the application and have 

confirmed that the proposed system appears to be adequate for the 
proposed type of premises (see comment on menu items above). 
 

4. The proposal has been assessed by colleagues in Roads, and the parking 
arrangements are considered acceptable. In addition, streets within the 
vicinity are subject to parking restrictions, and as such it would be difficult 
for drivers to stop and pick up deliveries. 
 

5. Point noted, each application is assessed on its own individual merits. 
 

6. The potential for an increase in anti-social behaviour is not a material 
planning consideration.  

 
Conclusion 
 
The proposal fails to accord with planning policy, and in this instance there are no 
material planning considerations which would warrant approval of planning 
permission contrary to the provisions of the development plan.  
 
Should Councillor’s wish to approve the application, appropriate conditions in 
relation to window details, cycle parking, disability access, refuse/ delivery 
details, as wells as conditions in relation to the ventilation system and types of 
food associated with the proposed use. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed use fails to accord with Policy C2 (City Centre Business Zone and 
Union Street) of the Aberdeen Local Plan, and its associated Supplementary 
Planning Guidance Notes on Union Street Frontages and Harmony of Uses in 
that the proposal would see a reduction of class 1 uses in the Union Street area 
to 61%, below the recommended Sector H percentage of 65%. There are no 
material considerations, or significant improvements proposed to the shop 
frontage which would merit departing from policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
 

 

Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1.1 Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee of 28 May 2014 - for approval
	2.1 Hopetoun Grange, Land to North of - Partial amendment to Planning Application 130029 to allow for an additional 20 units and change of house types
	Hopetoun Grange - Letters

	2.2 Aberdeen Airport Sports and Social Club, Farburn Terrace, Dyce - Erection of Helicopter Hangar
	Farburn Terrace - Letters

	2.3 Riverside East Building, Garthdee Road, Garthdee Campus - Variation of Condition 33 (CPZ)
	Riverside East Building - Letters

	2.4 Former Royal Cornhill Hospital, Berryden Road - Demolition of former hospital buildings and proposed residential development of 300 units, comprising 135 new build houses, 141 new build flats and conversion of former hospital building to form 24 flats, with associated car parking, open space and infrastructure
	Cornhill - Letters

	2.5 Friendville, Great Western Road - Change of use to events/function facility with associated guest accommodation
	Friendville - Letters

	2.6 21 Union Street - Change of use from Class 1 (Retail) to hot food takeaway (sui generis) and installation of flue
	21 Union Street - Letters


